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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
1362 Rutan Court, Suite 100 

Livermore, CA 94551 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
  
PLACE: Diana Lauterbach Room LAVTA Offices   
  1362 Rutan Court, Suite 100, Livermore CA 
 
TIME:  4:00pm 
  
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  
  

2. Roll Call of Members  
  

3. Meeting Open to Public 
 • Members of the audience may address the Board of Directors on any matter within the 

general subject matter jurisdiction of the LAVTA Board of Directors. 
• Unless members of the audience submit speaker forms before the start of the meeting 

requesting to address the board on specific items on the agenda, all comments must be made 
during this item of business.  Speaker cards are available at the entrance to the meeting room 
and should be submitted to the Board secretary. 

• Public comments should not exceed three (3) minutes.   
• Items are placed on the Agenda by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Executive 

Director, or by any three members of the Board of Directors.  Agendas are published 72 
hours prior to the meeting.   

• No action may be taken on matters raised that are not on the Agenda. 
• For the sake of brevity, all questions from the public, Board and Staff will be directed 

through the Chair. 
  

4. Consent Agenda 
 
Recommend approval of all items on Consent Agenda as follows: 

   
 A. Minutes of the October 2, 2017 Board of Directors meeting. 
   
 B. Treasurer’s Report for the month of September 2017 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the September 2017 Treasurer’s 
Report. 

   
 C. Contract Award for Bus Shelter Demolition and Movement Project #2017-17 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: (1) award a contract 
to FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the 
LAVTA Bus Shelter Demolition and Movement Project #2017-17, for a total contract 
award of $416,174.00; (2) authorize the Executive Director to sign the contract and issue 
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an NTP to FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc.; and (3) approve a 10% project contingency 
of $41,617.40 to be used at the discretion of the Executive Director. 

   
 D. Pleasanton Bus Rapid Transit Corridor Enhancement Project 

On-Call Task Order for Project Design and Engineering 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve Resolution 35-
2017 to execute a task order contract with LAVTA’s on-call contractor Kimley Horn and 
Associates, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $175,000 with a contingency amount of 
$17,500 (10%) to be utilized at the discretion of the Executive Director. 

   
5. Fiscal Year 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

 
Recommendation:  The Finance and Administration committee recommends the Board accept 
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) prior to submitting the CAFR to the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for award. 

  
6. MOU with Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 

 
Recommendation:  The Finance and Administration Committee recommends the Board 
approve the MOU with County Connection. 

  
7. Executive Director’s Report 

  
8. Adjourn to CLOSED SESSION 

  
9. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b): 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Title: Executive Director  

  
10. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
Agency Representative:  Michael Conneran, Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 

  
11. Reconvene to OPEN SESSION 

  
12. Consideration of Amendment to Employment Agreement with Executive Director Michael 

Tree 
 
Recommendation: Legal Counsel recommends that the Board consider an amendment to the 
employment agreement with Executive Director Michael Tree 

  
13. Matters Initiated by the Board of Directors 

 
• Items may be placed on the agenda at the request of three members of the Board. 

  
14. Next Meeting Date is Scheduled for: December 4, 2017 

  
15. Adjournment 



Final Agenda Page 3 of 3 

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, 
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 

I hereby certify that this agenda was posted 72 hours in advance of the noted meeting. 

/s/ Jennifer Suda         11/3/2017 
LAVTA, Administrative Assistant       Date 

On request, the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority will provide written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, or 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with disabilities to 
participate in public meetings. A written request, including name of the person, mailing address, phone number and brief description of 
the requested materials and preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service should be sent at least seven (7) days before the 
meeting. Requests should be sent to:  

Executive Director 
 Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
1362 Rutan Court, Suite 100 
Livermore, CA 94551 
Fax: 925.443.1375 
Email: frontdesk@lavta.org 

mailto:frontdesk@lavta.org


 

AGENDA 
 

ITEM 4 A 
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MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 2, 2017 LAVTA BOARD MEETING 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  

  
Meeting was called to order by Board Chair Karla Brown at 4:03pm 
 

2. Roll Call of Members  
  

Members Present 
Don Biddle – Vice Mayor, City of Dublin 
Karla Brown – Councilmember, City of Pleasanton 
Jerry Pentin – Vice Mayor, City of Pleasanton 
Steven Spedowfski – Vice Mayor, City of Livermore 
Bob Coomber – Councilmember, City of Livermore 
Scott Haggerty – Supervisor, County of Alameda 
David Haubert – Mayor, City of Dublin 
 

3. Meeting Open to Public 
  

Robert S. Allen 
Robert Allen addressed the Board of Directors regarding the Bart to Livermore Connection.  Mr. 
Allen explained that BART has run for twenty years to the Tri-Valley with its existing turnback 
facilities and extending BART to Isabel will not involve more turnback moves than now.  Mr. 
Allen noted the extension does not require adding a shop or the extensive car storage proposed.  
Only a turnback like the existing one in Dublin is needed.  Mr. Allen stated that if Alternatives 2 
(DMU/EMU) or 3 (Express Bus) worked they both would block BART trains from Isabel and 
there is clearly no need at Isabel for a shop or car storage with Alternative 1.  Mr. Allen’s DEIR 
comments expressed the need to keep all the BART tracks within a widened freeway median.  
Mr. Allen suggests a plan to add a shop and car storage with alternate extension to Greenville 
which is Livermore’s preference for BART. 

  
4. September Wheels Accessible Advisory Committee Minutes Report 

  
Wheels Accessible Advisory Committee (WAAC) Chair Herb Hastings stated he is now the 
acting Chair for the current year.  Mr. Hastings reported that in September’s meeting the WAAC 
discussed electing a Vice Chair at the November meeting, the successful Alameda County Fair 
shuttle bus, and the Dial-A-Ride Operations report.  During the September WAAC Helen 
Buckholtz recommended increasing Fixed Route service in West Dublin 

5. Consent Agenda 
 
Recommend approval of all items on Consent Agenda as follows: 

   
 A. Minutes of the September 11, 2017 Board of Directors meeting. 
   
 B. Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2017 

 
The Board of Directors approved the August 2017 Treasurer’s Report. 

   
 C. Transit Signal Priority Upgrade Project 
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Scope of Work for Design and Project Management 
 
The Board of Directors approved Resolution 32-2017 awarding the TSP Upgrade Project 
task order contract to LAVTA’s on-call contractor Kimley Horn for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $256,285.18 with a contingency amount of $25,628.51 (10%). 

   
Approved: Biddle/Pentin 
Aye: Biddle, Haubert, Pentin, Brown, Spedowfski, Coomber, Haggerty 
No: None 
Absent: None 
 

6. MOU with Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
 
Staff provided an update on the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Central Contra 
Costa Transit Authority to the Board of Directors.  Recognizing the limitations with LAVTA’s 
staff management is recommending a partnership with Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
(CCCTA) to manage LAVTA’s SAV program and CCCTA’s envisioned SAV program.  
CCCTA’s Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility, Rashidi Barnes, has the ability to 
manage both the LAVTA SAV project and an envisioned CCCTA project.  Both projects 
eventually can merge in a joint effort to use SAVs as a first/last mile solution along the I-580/I-
680 corridors.  The MOU envisions that CCCTA will fund the agency’s Director of Innovation 
and Shared Mobility as a financial contribution to the partnership.  LAVTA will provide funding 
from the Bay Area AQMD. 
 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty stated he has concerns, because Bay Area AQMD funds do not have 
strings attached and the money CCCTA has many strings attached and wants to know how 
LAVTA will make sure the Bay Area AQMD $1 million dollars stays separate from CCCTA’s 
money.  Staff responded that this is the first time LAVTA has been made aware that the CCCTA 
Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility funds may have strings attached and proposes staff 
figure out a plan to keep the funds separate.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty also is concerned that 
this was his idea and that LAVTA is turning it over to CCCTA and he does not like that.  
Supervisor Scott Haggerty hopes that Dublin staff will continue to be involved, but is concerned 
that LAVTA’s board will no longer control the project.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty suggested 
the formation of a Steering Committee with the Mayor/Councilmember, Supervisor Scott 
Haggerty, and a couple of representatives from Contra Costa County that will oversee this 
project. 
 
Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin stated that in the Finance and Administration Committee his 
understanding regarding how the money would be divided is the Director of Innovation and 
Shared Mobility was fully funded to do the project and the Bay Area AQMD funds would be 
used for the study, work, and testing in Dublin.  Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin explained that if there 
are constraints with the CCCTA Director than he agrees with Supervisor Scott Haggerty with 
having a Steering Committee. 
 
Mayor David Haubert requested that legal language to assist with protecting LAVTA’s project 
be added to the MOU.  Mayor David Haubert explained that having staff involved is important 
and that someone report to our Board would be helpful as well as a Steering Committee. 
 
Councilmember Karla Brown wanted to know if CCCTA is leading with their talent and 
LAVTA is providing the funds if there is an issue with being understaffed.  Executive Director 
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Michael Tree explained that staff is okay in a supporting role providing guidance working with 
the Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility and keeping the project focused.  It is difficult 
for Executive Director Michael Tree to envision one of staff being the point person in 
developing the SAV project and carrying it through.  Executive Director Michael Tree explained 
that this is why LAVTA looked at how a partnership could accomplish a lot of different things 
and assist with the staffing issue. 
 
Vice Mayor Don Biddle feels this would serve the Tri-Valley in a positive way. 
 
Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski wanted a clear understanding that none of the funding that 
LAVTA secured would be used to fund CCCTA Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility.  
Staff responded that is correct.  Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski would like LAVTA to stay 
directly involved in the project and would like that added with language in the MOU. 
 
The Board of Directors requested a Subcommittee made up of members from Alameda and 
Contra Costa County and one representative from Dublin and modifications to the MOU to be 
presented at the November 6, 2017 meeting. 

  
7. SB 1 and State Transit Assistance (STA) Population-Based Funds 

 
Staff provided an update on SB1 and State Transit Assistance (STA) Population Based Funds to 
the Board of Directors.  Senate Bill (SB) 1 provides funding for public transit, including 
formula-based and competitive funding.  The State Transit Assistance (STA) program will be 
boosted by approximately $250 million per year from an increase in the diesel sales tax of 3.5 
percent.  The augmentation of the revenue based funds will come directly to LAVTA from the 
state.  Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is now taking the opportunity of this 
funding augmentation to revisit their standing policy of how they distribute STA population 
based funds in the region.  LAVTA usually gets between $500 thousand to $1 million dollars in 
these funds for operating purposes per year.  MTC proposed two funding options: 1) Devolves 
most of the program to the County Congestion Management agencies, so for LAVTA that would 
mean going to the Alameda County Transportation Commission (ACTC) instead of MTC and 
has received support; 2) Take all the funding and place it in a regional program for lifeline 
transportation needs as well as a regional means based fare program, but has not received much 
support.  Executive Director Michael Tree met with MTC staff, East Bay CMA staff, and the 
East Bay small operators on September 28, 2017.  The next step in this process is to engage with 
ACTC staff and discuss their thoughts on this proposal.  The policy making schedule for MTC 
in November an informational item will go to programing and allocation committee and action 
no sooner than December, so LAVTA does have time to work out our concerns.  MTC told 
LAVTA that they do not want to do us harm and requested that we present a proposal that will 
make LAVTA feel satisfied under this scenario.  LAVTA would like to approach ACTC and/or 
MTC with funding amounts that we feel like keeps existing policies continuing and working fine 
for LAVTA.  This would result in a healthy infusion of new flexible operating funding for the 
agency. 
 
Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin stated that in the Finance and Administration Committee they made 
clear that the worst case scenario would be that we had our legislator vote for SB 1 and that 
LAVTA would end up with less funds.  Not only will our gas tax rise, but LAVTA’s gas taxes 
for the agency will rise.  This is not something that would be expected with passing SB 1 over 
the next ten years.  Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin would be very disappointed if MTC would come 
back with some sort of new program that would result in less funding for this agency.  Staff 
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stated that LAVTA does pay sales tax on diesel fuel and that’s where these STA funds come 
from.  Legal Counsel Michael Conneran noted this money is sales tax and that he would check 
on diesel fuel being taxed.  
 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty stated that the commission completely changed and that is why for 
the first time in the history someone is repeating something that happened ten years ago and it 
has never happened before.  LAVTA needs to engage ACTC, but also the instrumental person 
Jim Spering from Solano County, Art Dao, Supervisor Scott Haggerty, someone from Contra 
Costa County Daryl Halls, and Randell Iwasaki to discuss what we want and then make it 
happen.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty stated that he needs to get a better lay of the land to fight 
this and does not feel he has a complete understanding currently. 
 
Vice Mayor Don Biddle asked what ACTC’s role is and can we count on them.  Staff responded 
that in the past ACTC has had no role in programming or distributing these funds and it is 
MTC’s responsibility per state law, but they wish to devolve that responsibility to the Counties. 
 
This was informational only. 

  
8. Update on AB 758 and the Alameda – San Joaquin Regional Rail Working Group 

 
Staff provided an update on Assembly Bill (AB) 758 and the Alameda – San Joaquin Regional 
Rail Working Group to the Board of Directors.  AB 758 was recently approved and has been 
sent to the Governor for signature.  The Governor’s staff called LAVTA staff and they talked at 
length about the project.  On January 1, 2018 the Tri-Valley – San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail 
Authority will be effective with 15 members.  For the first eighteen months LAVTA will 
provide administrative services for the new authority.  The legislation has bullet points to 
accomplish in the scope of work in the first 18 months.  Consultants will play a major role to 
help complete this project, but there is day to day administration that needs to be completed.  
Frank Wilson resigned, so moving forward there is an option to hire another Executive 
Consultant or Executive Director Michael Tree could be the Executive Director and provide 
90% of his time to the Authority.  Executive Director Michael Tree would not resign from 
LAVTA, but take on enhanced responsibilities moving forward.  The Finance and 
Administration also discussed a Deputy Executive Director to take on more of the day to day 
responsibilities for LAVTA. 
 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty stated that passing AB 758 was a remarkable achievement and he 
gives credit to Assemblywoman Baker and Eggman, Michael Tree, and Marianne Payne.  
Supervisor Scott Haggerty feels it was the right time for Frank Wilson to leave and would not 
support hiring anyone else.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty feels Michael Tree is the right person to 
fill this position.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty advised that if the Board asks Michael Tree to take 
on this added responsibility they should look at paying Michael a footnote out of the funds from 
MTC and keep him on as the LAVTA Executive Director.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty also 
thinks that the Alameda-San Joaquin Regional Rail Working Group should consider paying 
Marianne Payne as a consultant to date.  Supervisor Scott Haggerty also requested Michael Tree 
to decide on whether he needs a full-time Deputy Executive Director. 
 
Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski agreed with Supervisor Scott Haggerty and thanked Executive 
Director Michael Tree and Marianne Payne for their hard work. 
 
Vice Mayor Don Biddle also agreed with Supervisor Scott Haggerty regarding hiring Michael 
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Tree to take on this responsibility. 
 
Councilmember Karla Brown stated that if Michael Tree steps into a more aggressive role in the 
Tri-Valley – San Joaquin Regional Rail Authority we need to make sure what we do day to day 
that this Board is covered and that means that Christy and Tamara will do more.  The Board will 
look for guidance from Executive Director Michael Tree if additional staff is needed temporarily 
or full-time, because the last thing needed is a high turnover in staff from taking on more than 
they can handle without you as their leader. 
 
Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin informed the Board that the Finance and Administrative Committee 
discussed that the appointment of a Deputy would take a Deputy stage pay and it would be nice 
if it was covered by MTC or supported by San Joaquin.  Having Michael Tree as the 
administrative staff for the Authority is wonderful, but the Board of Directors role is to make 
sure LAVTA is on the straight and narrow.  Also not costing LAVTA in personnel or cost. 
 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty informed LAVTA that he does not believe MTC will pay for a 
Deputy.  Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin followed up asking if MTC would pay for the Authority staff.  
Executive Director Michael Tree answered yes. 
 
Legal Counsel Michael Conneran stated that Executive Director Michael Tree has received 
direction from the Board and will come back to the Board in November with a proposal for the 
opportunity to vote on. 
 
This was informational only. 

  
9. Final Draft BART to Livermore DEIR Comments 

 
Staff provided an update on the Final Draft BART to Livermore DEIR Comments to the Board 
of Directors.  At the September 11th Board meeting BART presented the DEIR and comments 
were provided by the Board.  At the September 11th meeting the Board directed staff to collect 
comments from the three Tri-Valley cities and the Alameda-San Joaquin Regional Rail Working 
Group.  LAVTA received comments from the City of Dublin, City of Livermore, Alameda-San 
Joaquin Regional Rail Working Group, and the Project and Services Committee.  Currently the 
City of Pleasanton is still working on their comment letter.  The comment letter is being updated 
by LAVTA as we receive feedback.  LAVTA is seeing similar comments regarding size and 
cost of the shop and yard, parking spaces at Isabel, and right of way issues/concerns.  Comments 
are due October 16th and will be mailed out by Executive Director Michael Tree. 
 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty asked what happens if he does not like the comments provide by the 
City of Pleasanton.  Staff responded that they would be excluded from the comment letter.  
Executive Director Michael Tree proposed LAVTA hone in the Draft comments and then work 
with the Chair and Vice Chair to review the comments prior to providing the letter to BART. 
 
Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski assumed that the City of Livermore comments will change and 
commented that the mere suggestion that allocating any of the project cost towards that service 
yard is okay, since Livermore has contributed more than their share into the BART system 
without any service.  Funds are being generated for BART and they are turning money down for 
parking in Dublin and Pleasanton.  Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski would like the comment 
changed to “the service yard should be fully funded by BART outside of this project or taken 
out completely”.  Vice Mayor Steven Spedowfski also mentioned that the service station could 
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be at Fallon and the DMU/EMU could meet up at a platform there.  Then the service yard could 
be eliminated.  
 
The Board requested Executive Director Michael Tree to send the refined version of Frank 
Wilson’s comments regarding the BART to Livermore DEIR. 
 
This was informational only 

  
10. Executive Director’s Report 

  
Executive Director Michael Tree noted that the monthly summary statistics for Wheels Fixed 
Route had an error, but was corrected.  Ridership for the month of August was 8.1% higher than 
last year.  LAVTA is concerned about having an efficient number of operators, so a temp agency 
may be utilized.  Dublin ridership has substantially increased 40% at the beginning of the 
academic year and LAVTA is concerned about meeting the needs of school trippers.  Staff 
provided a brief update on Dublin school tripper routes.  Buses are picking up about sixty 
passengers per vehicle and LAVTA is not leaving school trippers behind.  A pilot early/late bird 
service will begin on October 21st.  LAVTA also met with Dublin Unified School District on 
September 27th regarding service recommendations for modifications.  LAVTA staff will be 
preparing a scope of work for the study in October and hopefully awarded by the end of the 
year. 
 
Councilmember Karla Brown asked why a large increase in Dublin school trippers.  Mayor 
David Haubert responded stating that they are mostly freshman and sophomore students without 
vehicles.  When the 9th and 10th grade class grows by 40% you can see an increase in ridership.  
LAVTA was not made aware of the increase during the school enrollment period and that makes 
it difficult for bus service planning.  Mayor David Haubert suggested maybe a phone application 
for students registering for school that will ride the bus, so LAVTA would know how many 
students will ride every day for planning purposes.  Mayor David Haubert thanked LAVTA staff 
for everything that we have done, but Mayor David Haubert is being contacted on social media 
regarding what the City/Mayor will do to correct the situation.  Mayor David Haubert is asking 
to be included on meetings with staff, between now and next fall have more periodic updates, 
and for LAVTA to watch social media to see the fake news regarding our bus service.  Mayor 
David Haubert is concerned that school trippers are standing on buses going onto the freeway 
and would like to see a seat for every student.  Mayor David Haubert feels it is wrong to have 
them standing, since an accident could occur and it would be a liability for LAVTA.  Mayor 
David Haubert would like buses pulled from regular routes (however many it takes), so a student 
can get a seat on the bus.  If federal law needs to be changed, so this agency can schedule buses 
than we should ask for it.  Mayor David Haubert stated LAVTA must find a way to serve our 
most profitable route.  Mayor David Haubert is not being critical of LAVTA, because he is very 
thankful.  Mayor David Haubert is asking LAVTA and thanking us in advance of what needs to 
be done to be part of the solution together. 
 
Vice Mayor Don Biddle mentioned that their experience in Dublin is that the school district 
blames the City for all of their ills, so it might work that same way with LAVTA. 
 
Staff told the Board that LAVTA does not have access to all of the social media posts and would 
like to monitor it, but need access.  Mayor David Haubert will look into this further to give 
LAVTA access to where comments are being posted. 
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Vice Mayor Steven Spedowsfki reiterated from past meetings the need to look into subscription 
bus service for school trippers.  Vice Mayor Jerry Pentin explained that the demographics are 
only going to get worse in regards to school trippers and a subscription is a discussion we may 
need to have. 
 
Legal Counsel Michael Conneran commented as general counsel for the school bus agency in 
Danville/San Ramon that it is funded with county sales tax money, primarily a little bit of 
developer fees, and the parents pay.  The Danville/San Ramon program is very successful and is 
on the other side of the line of a federally funded transit agency that is not technically supposed 
to supply school bus service.  LAVTA does everything that we can within the federal rules to 
provide school tripper service.  Danville/San Ramon agency uses all local money and the buses 
are more designed for school students. 
 
Councilmember Karla Brown acknowledged and thanked Tamara Edwards for the 21st 
consecutive year LAVTA received the prestigious Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
Award in Financial Reporting. 
 

11. Matters Initiated by the Board of Directors 
 
None. 

  
12. Next Meeting Date is Scheduled for: November 6, 2017 

  
13. Adjournment 

  
Meeting adjourned at 5:27pm. 

 



 

AGENDA 
 

ITEM 4 B 
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SUBJECT: Treasurer’s Report for September 2017 
 
FROM: Tamara Edwards, Finance and Grants Manager 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
Review and approve the LAVTA Treasurer’s Report for September 2017. 
 
Discussion  
Cash accounts: 
Our petty cash account (101) has a balance of $200, and our ticket sales change account 
(102) continues with a balance of $240 (these two accounts should not change). 
 
General checking account activity (105): 
Beginning balance September 1, 2017          $8,939,062.76 
Payments made          $1,504,364.36      
Deposits made          $5,117,799.18 
Ending balance September 30, 2017        $12,552,497.58 

  
Farebox account activity (106): 
Beginning balance September 1, 2017             $126,932.68 
Deposits made               $64,912.84 
Ending balance September 30, 2017             $191,845.52 

 
LAIF investment account activity (135): 
Beginning balance September 1, 2017          $663,881.81 
Ending balance September 30, 2017          $663,881.81 

 
 
Operating Expenditures Summary:  
As this is the third month of the fiscal year, in order to stay on target for the budget this year 
expenses (at least the ones that occur on a monthly basis) should not be higher than 25%. The 
agency is at 23% overall.  
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Operating Revenues Summary: 
While expenses are at 23%, revenues are at 44.8%, providing for a healthy cash flow  
 
Recommendation 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends approval of the September 2017 
Treasurer’s Report. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. September 2017 Treasurer’s Report 
 

Approved:  
  

 



ASSETS:

101 PETTY CASH 200
102 TICKET SALES CHANGE 240
105 CASH - GENERAL CHECKING 12,552,498
106 CASH - FIXED ROUTE ACCOUNT 191,846
107 Clipper Cash 623,133
120 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (2,948,351)
135 INVESTMENTS - LAIF 663,882
150 PREPAID EXPENSES (20,742)
160 OPEB ASSET 430,453
165 DEFFERED OUTFLOW-Pension Related 132,890
170 INVESTMENTS  HELD AT CALTIP 0
111 NET PROPERTY COSTS 42,245,608

TOTAL ASSETS 53,871,656

LIABILITIES:

205 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (1,632,887)
211 PRE-PAID REVENUE 1,630,291

21101 Clipper to be distributed 443,703
22000 FEDERAL INCOME TAXES PAYABLE 34
22010 STATE INCOME TAX (10)
22020 FICA MEDICARE (0)
22050 PERS HEALTH PAYABLE 0
22040 PERS RETIREMENT PAYABLE (331)
22030 SDI TAXES PAYABLE 0
22070 AMERICAN FIDELITY INSURANCE PAYABLE (974)
22090 WORKERS' COMPENSATION PAYABLE 7,179
22100 PERS-457 0
22110 Direct Deposit Clearing 0
23101 Net Pension Liability 634,007
23104 Deferred Inflow- Pension Related 103,992
23103 INSURANCE CLAIMS PAYABLE 85,637
23102 UNEMPLOYMENT RESERVE 12,028

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,282,670

FUND BALANCE:

301 FUND RESERVE 8,716,200
304 GRANTS, DONATIONS, PAID-IN CAPITAL 39,460,703

30401 SALE OF BUSES & EQUIPMENT 55,390
FUND BALANCE 4,356,693

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 52,588,986

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 53,871,656

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
9/31/2017

Attachment 1



PERCENT
CURRENT  YEAR TO  BALANCE BUDGET

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET MONTH DATE AVAILABLE EXPENDED

  

4010100 Fixed Route Passenger Fares 1,473,687 128,803 293,579 1,180,108       19.9%

4020000 Business Park Revenues 203,170                    33,862 33,862 169,308          16.7%

4020500 Special Contract Fares 399,028 0 141,542 257,486          35.5%

4020500 Special Contract Fares - Paratransit 42,000                      0 0 42,000            0.0%

4010200 Paratransit Passenger Fares 203,000                    13,808 50,074 152,927          24.7%

4060100 Concessions 50,972                      0 45 50,927            0.1%

4060300 Advertising Revenue 90,000                      0 95,000 (5,000)             105.6%

4070400 Miscellaneous Revenue-Interest 6,000                        0 0 6,000              0.0%

4070300 Non tranpsortation revenue 56,400 5,585 12,377 44,023            100.0%

4090100 Local Transportation revenue (TFCA RTE B   479,000                    0 0 479,000          100.0%

4099100 TDA Article 4.0 - Fixed Route 9,778,570                 807,446 7,304,711 2,473,859       74.7%

4099500 TDA Article 4.0-BART 98,995                      7,124 28,847 70,148            29.1%

4099200 TDA Article 4.5 - Paratransit 133,864                    48,276 48,276 85,588            36.1%

4099600 Bridge Toll- RM2, RM1 913,836                    0 0 913,836          0.0%

4110100 STA  Funds-Partransit 56,773                      0 0 56,773            0.0%

4110500 STA Funds- Fixed Route BART 591,679                    0 0 591,679          0.0%

4110100 STA  Funds-pop 592,225                    0 0 592,225          0.0%

4110100 STA Funds- rev 173,758                    0 0 173,758          0.0%

4110100 STA Funds- Lifeline -                            0 0 -                 #DIV/0!

4130000 FTA Section 5307 Preventative Maint. 444,777                    0 0 444,777          100.0%

4130000 FTA Section 5307 ADA Paratransit 342,169                    0 0 342,169          0.0%

4130000 FTA TPI 104,000                    0 0 104,000          100.0%

4130000 FTA JARC and NF -                            421 421 (421)               #DIV/0!

4130000 FTA 5311 -                            0 0 -                 #DIV/0!

4640500 Measure B Gap 0 0 -                 100.0%

4640500 Measure B Express Bus 100,000                    0 0 100,000          100.0%

4640100 Measure B Paratransit Funds-Fixed Route 905,892                    101,438 101,438 804,454          11.2%

4640100 Measure B Paratransit Funds-Paratransit 170,441                    19,085 19,085 151,356          11.2%

4640200 Measure BB Paratransit Funds-Fixed Route 670,032                    73,119 73,119 596,913          10.9%

4640200 Measure BB Paratransit Funds-Paratransit 285,657                    31,173 31,173 254,484          10.9%

TOTAL REVENUE 18,365,925               1,270,139 8,233,549 10,132,376     44.8%

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REVENUE  REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
9/31/2017



PERCENT
CURRENT YEAR TO BALANCE BUDGET 

BUDGET MONTH DATE AVAILABLE EXPENDED

501 02 Salaries and Wages $1,362,014 $150,558 $375,515 $986,499 27.57%

502 00 Personnel Benefits $942,989 $57,635 $229,378 $713,611 24.32%

503 00 Professional Services $936,878 $28,587 $52,377 $884,501 5.59%

503 05 Non-Vehicle Maintenance $636,214 $17,190 $197,775 $438,439 31.09%

503 99 Communications $9,500 $18 $521 $8,979 5.48%

504 01 Fuel and Lubricants $1,174,700 $53,702 $124,061 $1,050,639 10.56%

504 03 Non contracted vehicle maintenance $19,550 $250 $250 $19,300 1.28%

504 99 Office/Operating Supplies $28,700 $23,678 $31,168 ($2,468) 108.60%

504 99 Printing $54,500 $164 $1,137 $53,363 2.09%

505 00 Utilities $276,000 $0 $23,293 $252,707 8.44%

506 00 Insurance $637,238 $27,664 $463,434 $173,804 72.73%

507 99 Taxes and Fees $302,000 $5,013 $11,467 $290,533 3.80%

508 01 Purchased Transportation Fixed Route $9,338,719 $749,038 $2,244,315 $7,098,323 24.03%

2-508 02 Purchased Transportation Paratransit $1,994,500 $141,356 $431,102 $1,563,398 21.61%

508 03 Purchased Transportation WOD $75,000 $0 $1,234 $73,766 1.65%

509 00 Miscellaneous $434,323 $3,712 $31,563 $402,760 7.27%

509 02 Professional Development $38,100 $144 $2,574 $35,526 6.76%

509 08 Advertising $95,000 $0 $1,377 $93,623 1.45%

$18,355,925 $1,258,710 $4,222,539 $14,137,305 23.00%

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
OPERATING EXPENDITURES
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:

TOTAL

9/31/2017



PERCENT
CURRENT YEAR TO BALANCE BUDGET

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTON BUDGET MONTH DATE AVAILABLE EXPENDED

REVENUE DETAILS  

4090594 TDA (office and facility equip) 100,000                0 0 100,000 0.00%
4090194 TDA Shop repairs and replacement 85,000                  0 0 85,000 0.00%
4091794 Bus stop improvements 212,461                0 0 212,461 0.00%
4092394 TDA Bus replacement 2,738,770             2,180,508 2,180,508 558,262 79.62%
4090994 TDA IT Upgrades and Replacements 35,000                  0 0 35,000 0.00%
4090794 TDA Transit Center Improvements 273,493                0 0 273,493 0.00%

409??94 TDA (Transit Capital) 100,000                0 0 100,000 0.00%
4092094 TDA (Major component rehab) 30,000                  0 0 30,000 0.00%
4091294 TDA Doolan Tower Upgrade 10,000                  0 0 10,000 0.00%
4090894 TDA TPI 66,000                  0 0 66,000 0.00%
4092194 TDA Rebranding bus wrap 175,000                0 0 175,000 0.00%
4091594 TDA Farebox upgrade 101,758                0 0 101,758 0.00%
4090394 TDA Non revenue vehicle replacement 144,800                0 0 144,800 0.00%
4092396 Bridge Tolls Bus Replacement 535,578                0 0 535,578 0.00%
4091701 CTC CIP Shelters 1,600,000             0 0 1,600,000 0.00%

409xx01 TVTC TSP 1,140,000             0 0 1,140,000 0.00%
4111700 PTMISEA Shelters and Stops 117,539                0 0 117,539 0.00%

41124 Prob 1B Security upgrades 36,696                  0 0 36,696 0.00%
41114 Prop 1B Wifi 36,696                  0 0 36,696 0.00%
41107 PTMISEA Transit Center Improvements 126,507                0 0 126,507 0.00%
41105 PTMISEA Office improvements 177,390                0 0 177,390 0.00%
41308 TPI 504,564                0 0 504,564 0.00%
41315 FTA Farebox upgrade 398,242                0 0 398,242 0.00%
41304 FTA BRT 300,000                0 0 300,000 0.00%
41303 FTA non revenue vehicle upgrade 367,200                0 0 367,200 0.00%
41323 FTA Bus replacements 12,312,300           0 0 12,312,300 0.00%

TOTAL REVENUE 21,724,994           2,180,508      2,180,508        19,544,486        10.04%
  

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT (Page 1 of 2)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
9/31/2017



PERCENT
CURRENT YEAR TO BALANCE BUDGET

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTON BUDGET MONTH DATE AVAILABLE EXPENDED
   

EXPENDITURE DETAILS   

CAPITAL PROGRAM - COST CENTER 07   

5550107 Shop Repairs and replacement 85,000                  16,387 16,387 68,613 19.28%
5550207 New MOA Facility (Satelite Facility) -                       0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5550307 Non revenue vehicle replacement 512,000                0 0 512,000 0.00%
5550407 BRT -                       0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5550507 Office and Facility Equipment 277,390                37,750 37,750 239,640 13.61%
5550607 511 Integration -                       0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TSP upgrade 1,140,000             0 0 1,140,000 0.00%
5550807 Dublin TPI project 570,564                209,495 209,495 361,069 36.72%
5550907 IT Upgrades and replacement 35,000                  5,071 5,071 29,929 14.49%
5551007 Transit Center Upgrades and Improvements 400,000                0 0 400,000 0.00%
5551207 Doolan Tower upgrade 10,000                  0 0 10,000 0.00%
5551407 Wifi 36,696                  0 0 36,696 0.00%
5551507 Farebox upgrade 500,000                0 0 500,000 0.00%
5551707 Bus Shelters and Stops 2,230,000             0 0 2,230,000 0.00%
5552007 Major component rehab 30,000                  3,032 3,032 26,968 10.11%
5552107 Rebranding bus wrap 175,000                0 0 175,000 0.00%
5552307 Bus replacement 15,586,648           0 36,883 15,549,766 0.24%
5552407 Security upgrades 36,696                  0 0 36,696 0.00%

555??07 Transit Capital 100,000                0 0 100,000 0.00%
 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 21,724,994           271,735 308,617 21,416,377 1.42%

FUND BALANCE (CAPITAL) 0.00 1,908,773 1,871,891

FUND BALANCE (CAPTIAL & OPERATING) 0.00 1,922,268 5,886,820

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
9/31/2017

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT (Page 2 of 2)



10/19/2017 LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx 1/1

Local Agency Investment Fund 
P.O. Box 942809 
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 
(916) 653-3001

www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-
laif/laif.asp 

                   October 19, 2017
 

LIVERMORE/AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY 
GENERAL MANAGER 
1362 RUTAN COURT,  SUITE 100 
LIVERMORE, CA  94550

  

 
PMIA Average Monthly Yields

Account Number:
80-01-002

Tran Type Definitions September 2017 Statement

      

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance: 664,096.52

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 664,096.52

http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm
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SUBJECT: Contract Award for Bus Shelter Demolition and Movement Project #2017-17 
 
FROM: Jennifer Yeamans, Senior Grants, Project Management & Contract Specialist 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
Staff requests that the Board of Directors approve the award of an Agreement between LAVTA 
and FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., to demolish four damaged shelters on North Canyons 
Parkway in Livermore and relocate four Rapid bus shelters and amenities to those locations, and 
that the Board authorize the LAVTA Executive Director to finalize all details and execute said 
Agreement between LAVTA and FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc. 
 
Background 
The implementation of LAVTA’s Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) in August 2016 
realigned the original Rapid route into two new Rapid service alignments, the 10R and the 30R. 
As a result, some bus stops previously served by the Rapid were either deactivated or now served 
only by Wheels service, while other locations that had previously had Wheels service now have 
new Rapid service. In November 2016, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) notified 
LAVTA staff that the grant to construct the original Rapid facilities was in Inactive status and 
would be closed out at the end of the current Federal Fiscal Year and the funds deobligated back 
to FTA unless LAVTA began making significant drawdowns prior to September 30, 2017, of the 
remaining $514,619 in FTA grant funds available for expenditure at that time. 
 
According to FTA staff, eligible drawdowns for the remaining grant funds had to be applicable 
to the Rapid service improvements funded by the original grant. After consultation with FTA, 
LAVTA staff proposed to draw down the remaining grant balance by relocating four Rapid 
shelters no longer served by Rapid service to four locations identified on North Canyons 
Parkway in Livermore that had new Rapid service but did not have Rapid shelters or amenities, 
and FTA agreed to the proposed scope of work. In April 2017, LAVTA staff engaged the 
Authority’s On-Call Engineering Services consultant to develop plans and specifications for the 
Bus Shelter Demolition and Movement Project and develop an engineer’s estimate, thereby 
beginning to incur eligible expenses on and draw down the grant, restoring it to Active status. 
 
This project encompasses removing Rapid shelters and amenities at the following locations: 

• Stoneridge Drive & Foothill Rd. in Pleasanton (stop deactivated) 
• Springdale Ave. & Stoneridge Drive in Pleasanton (stop no longer served by Rapid) 
• West Jack London Blvd. at Livermore Outlets WB (stop no longer served by Rapid) 
• West Jack London Blvd. at Livermore Outlets EB (stop no longer served by Rapid) 
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In addition, the project will remove and dispose of old, damaged plexiglass shelters and install 
the four relocated Rapid-style shelters and amenities at the following locations, all of which 
gained new Rapid service via the 30R following implementation of the COA: 

• North Canyons Parkway & Constitution Drive WB  
• North Canyons Parkway & Constitution Drive EB  
• North Canyons Parkway & Independence Drive WB  
• North Canyons Parkway & Independence Drive EB  

 
The map in Attachment 1 shows the locations of the work to be performed as described above. 
LAVTA staff intends to coordinate replacement of non-Rapid shelters/amenities at the three still-
active Wheels stops under a separate contract to be procured later this fall. Staff’s intent is to 
coordinate that procurement closely with this project with the goal of providing for the best 
possible customer experience throughout all phases of the work at all affected locations. 
 
LAVTA’s Procurement Policy mandates the Authority follow a competitive procurement process 
for award of major contracts. On July 25, 2017, LAVTA released an Invitation for Bids (IFB) for 
the LAVTA Bus Shelter Demolition and Movement Project #2017-16, for qualified contractors 
to bid on the project plans and specifications developed by LAVTA’s project engineer. An 
optional pre-bid conference was held at the Authority’s Administrative Offices on August 7, 
2017, at 10:00 a.m. Written Questions or Requests were due on August 11, 2017 at 4:00 p.m., 
and one Addendum was issued with answers to questions received on August 15, 2017. The 
responses to the IFB were due on August 18, 2017, at 2:00 p.m., and three bids were received. 
On September 11, 2017, the LAVTA Board of Directors rejected all bids received for IFB 
#2017-16 for being in excess of the budget available to implement the project and directed staff 
to re-scope the project and release a new solicitation for bids on a scaled-back project. 
 
On September 12, 2017, LAVTA released an Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the LAVTA Bus 
Shelter Demolition and Movement Project #2017-17, for qualified contractors to bid on revised 
project plans and specifications developed by LAVTA’s project engineer. An optional pre-bid 
conference was held at the Authority’s Administrative Offices on September 25, 2017, at 10:00 
a.m. Written Questions or Requests were due on September 29, 2017, at 4:00 p.m., and one 
Addendum was issued on October 3, 2017, with answers to questions received. The responses to 
the IFB were due on October 6, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Discussion 
Four proposals were received in accordance with the requirements established in the IFB. The 
responding firms were:  
 

Company Name Location Grand Total 
Amount 

Sposeto Engineering, Inc.  Livermore, CA $567,570.00 
John Clay Engineering Hayward, CA $441,200.00 
FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc. Livermore, CA $416,174.00 
CWS Construction Group Inc. Novato, CA $613,000.00 
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FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc. submitted the lowest bid and was found to be responsive and 
responsible by legal counsel and staff. This project is due to be completed within 60 working 
days from the Notice to Proceed (NTP). 
 
Fiscal Impact 
A cost analysis was conducted by staff and staff has determined that the bid is both reasonable 
and fair. The engineer’s estimate for the project was $436,792. Funding for this project is 
identified in LAVTA’s FY2018 budget and consists of Federal Transit Administration 
discretionary grant funds and Transportation Development Act funds as local match.  
 
The project budget is $457,791.40 and consists of the contract award of $416,174.00 and a 10% 
project contingency of $41,617.40.  
 
Next Steps 
Upon execution of the agreement with FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., LAVTA will issue the 
NTP. Once the project is complete, LAVTA staff anticipates being able to draw down the 
remaining balance and close out the FTA Bus Rapid Transit grant. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: (1) award a contract to FBD Vanguard 
Construction, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the LAVTA Bus Shelter 
Demolition and Movement Project #2017-17, for a total contract award of $416,174.00; (2) 
authorize the Executive Director to sign the contract and issue an NTP to FBD Vanguard 
Construction, Inc.; and (3) approve a 10% project contingency of $41,617.40 to be used at the 
discretion of the Executive Director. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Map of Project Locations 
2. Resolution 34-2017 

 
 
 

Approved:  
  

 



Attachment 1 
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RESOLUTION NO. 34-2017 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE BUS SHELTER DEMOLITION AND 

MOVEMENT PROJECT TO FBD VANGUARD CONSTRUCTION, INC.     
 

 WHEREAS, the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) requires 
the services of a third-party contractor to perform the demolition and movement of four 
bus shelters as described in LAVTA Invitation for Bids (IFB) #2017-17; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff released IFB #2017-17 to solicit bids for the project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, four bids were received, and FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., was 
determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder based on their submitted 
bid in the amount of $416,174.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Board of Directors award the contract for 
the demolition and movement of four bus shelters to FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., 
in the not to exceed amount of $416,174.00;   
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby 
awards the contract for demolition and movement of four bus shelters to FBD Vanguard 
Construction, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $416,174.00; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director is authorized to 

execute a contract with FBD Vanguard Construction, Inc., in a form approved by 
LAVTA’s Legal Counsel; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the 

Executive Director to expend a 10% contingency amount not to exceed $41,617.40. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of November 2017. 
 
 
           
 
                                                            _________________________________   
             Karla Brown, Chair 
 
         ATTEST: 
                                                               
       
         __________________________________ 
               Michael Tree, Executive Director 
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APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
         Michael Conneran, Legal Counsel 
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SUBJECT: Pleasanton Bus Rapid Transit Corridor Enhancement Project 

On-Call Task Order for Project Design and Engineering   
 
FROM: Jennifer Yeamans, Senior Grants, Project Management & Contract Specialist 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
Staff requests that the Board of Directors authorize LAVTA’s Executive Director to execute a 
task order with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc., to perform design and engineering services for 
the LAVTA Pleasanton Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor Enhancement project pursuant to the 
terms of LAVTA’s existing on-call Engineering Services Contract (Agreement #842, RFP 
#2016-14) for $175,000, with a 10% contingency to be used at the Executive Director’s 
discretion. 
 
Background 
The Pleasanton BRT Corridor Enhancement Project focuses on improving transit facilities along 
the Santa Rita, West Las Positas, and Owens Blvd. corridors in Pleasanton on the Route 10R. 
These upgrades will add vital amenities to improve the transit experience in Pleasanton, 
including premium Rapid-style bus shelters, enhanced lighting, real time signs, benches, trash 
cans, and bicycle racks. The new shelters will complement the premium Rapid bus service now 
operating along the corridor. A map showing locations for Rapid improvements along the 10R 
corridor in Pleasanton is included as Attachment 1. 
 
Funding for this project ($1.626 million) is being provided by $1.414 million in Measure B funds 
LAVTA was awarded under the Alameda County Transportation Commission’s (ACTC’s) 2018 
Comprehensive Investment Program (CIP) approved April 27, 2017 (see CIP Excerpt, 
Attachment 2), and $212,000 in local Transportation Development Act funds. In October 2017, 
LAVTA and ACTC executed a funding agreement for Measure B funds stipulating the project 
funding amounts and delivery milestones as follows: 
 

Phase/Milestone 
Begin 

(Mo/Yr) 
End 

(Mo/Yr) 
ACTC 

CIP TDA Total 
Final Design (PS&E) 10/2017 12/2017 $   152,000 $  23,000 $   175,000 
Construction (Incl. Equipment) 03/2018 01/2019 $1,262,000 $189,000 $1,451,000 

Total Funding $1,414,000 $212,000 $1,626,000 
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The next step is to begin the design of the bus stop improvements, and develop plans and 
specifications for the procurement of equipment and construction services to implement the 
project beginning in early 2018. 
 
Discussion 
Kimley-Horn is one of LAVTA’s on-call engineering services firms. Kimley-Horn’s proposal in 
response to the solicitation for on-call engineering firms was ranked highest by the evaluation 
committee in the areas of both civil and traffic engineering. At the time of the contract award, 
LAVTA established a policy that: (a) on-call firms would receive work associated with the 
discipline they scored highest in the proposal evaluations; and (b) if the highest-scoring firm 
cannot complete the assigned work order or their work plan is deemed inadequate, LAVTA will 
use the second highest scoring firm. Kimley-Horn has extensive experience working with Tri-
Valley traffic engineers and has satisfactorily provided similar design and engineering services 
for other LAVTA bus stop projects such as similar Rapid-style improvements along North 
Canyons Parkway in Livermore.  
 
Budget 
The cost for project design and engineering was estimated at 11% of the project budget, or 
$175,000. Based on the proposed scope of work, Kimley Horn will provide the work for a firm 
fixed price fee of $175,000. With a standard 10% contingency in place, the total budget for this 
portion of the project to be provided for under this task order is $192,500. 
 
Funding for this project, including the funds to be expended by the Task Order, are identified in 
LAVTA’s approved FY 2018 Budget as part of the Capital Improvement Program.  
 
Next Steps 
Upon executing the task order with Kimley Horn, LAVTA will issue a Notice to Proceed.  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve Resolution 35-2017 to execute a task order 
contract with LAVTA’s on-call contractor Kimley Horn and Associates, Inc., for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $175,000 with a contingency amount of $17,500 (10%) to be utilized at the discretion 
of the Executive Director.  
 
Attachment: 
 

1. Pleasanton BRT Corridor Enhancement Project Location 
2. ACTC 2018 Comprehensive Investment Program Excerpt 
3. Resolution 35-2017 

 
 

 
Approved:  
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Alameda CTC Comprehensive Investment Plan
2018 Programming and Allocation Summary
2018 CIP Five Year Programming and Two-Year Allocation Plan Prior Allocations

CIP ID Sponsor Project Title PA Funding Type Fund Source Fund Subset Mode Phase Programmed 
Amount

Prior To
FY2017-18 
(April 2017)

FY2017-18 FY2018-19 FY2019-20 FY2020-21 FY2021-22

Total
Allocated

(Thru
18-19)

Programming and Allocations ($ x 1,000)

Two-Year Allocation Plan

00272 Fremont Tri-City Mobility Management and Travel Training Program
(FY 17/18 and FY 18/19) 3-South Local 2000 MB Disc-PT Paratransit O&M 298 149 149 298

00238 Fremont Walnut Avenue Protected Bikeway in City 
Center/Downtown PDA 3-South Local 2014 MBB TEP-45 Bike/Ped CON-CAP 5,000 5,000 5,000

00240 Hayward First Mile/Last Mile BART Shuttle Operations 2-Central Local 2014 MBB TEP-45 Transit O&M 550 110 110 110 110 110 220

00241 Hayward Main Street Complete Street Project 2-Central Federal STP/CMAQ STP/CMAQ LSR Final Design 
(PS&E) 175 175 175

2-Central Federal STP/CMAQ STP/CMAQ LSR CON-CAP 1,500 1,500 1,500

00242 Hayward SR-92 Clawiter-Whitesell Interchange 2-Central Local 2014 MBB TEP-26 HWY Planning / 
Scoping 440 440 440

00126 Hayward Mission Blvd. Phases 2 & 3 (Complete Streets) 2-Central Local 2014 MBB TEP-26 LSR CON-CAP 21,500 9,500 12,000 21,500

00243 Hayward Winton Avenue - Complete Street Project 2-Central Federal STP/CMAQ LSR LSR Final Design 
(PS&E) 88 88 88

2-Central Federal STP/CMAQ LSR LSR CON-CAP 1,662 1,662 1,662

00183 LAVTA LAVTA Rte 30R Operations (FY 17/18 - 18/19) 4-East Local TFCA Prog Mgr Transit O&M 318 318 318

00244 LAVTA Pleasanton BRT Corridor Enhancement Project 
(Route 10R) 4-East Local 2000 MB Disc-Transit Transit Final Design 

(PS&E) 152 152 152

4-East Local 2000 MB Disc-Transit Transit CON-CAP 1,262 1,262 1,262

00245 LAVTA Wheels Forward/2020 Plan 4-East Local 2000 MB Disc-Transit Transit Planning / 
Scoping 220 220

00276 LAVTA Para-Taxi Program (FY 17/18 and FY 18/19) 4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-12 Paratransit O&M 40 18 22 40

00275 LIFE ElderCare VIP Rides Program (FY 17/18 and FY 18/19) Multiple Local 2014 MBB TEP-12 Paratransit O&M 275 103 172 275

00189 Livermore Iron Horse Trail Gap Closure
(Isabel Avenue to Murrietta) 4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-42 Bike/Ped Planning / 

Scoping 30 30 30

4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-42 Bike/Ped PE/Env 20 20 20

4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-42 Bike/Ped Final Design 
(PS&E) 160 160 160

4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-42 Bike/Ped CON-CAP 1,407 1,407 1,407

4-East Local TFCA Prog Mgr. Bike/Ped CON-CAP 193 193 193

00246 Livermore Livermore Annual Pavement Maintenance - MTS Routes 4-East Federal STP/CMAQ LSR LSR CON-CAP 1,382 1,382

00247 Livermore Vasco Road/I-580 Interchange Improvements 4-East Local 2014 MBB TEP-34 HWY PE/Env 1,380 1,380 1,380
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RESOLUTION NO. 35-2017 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

AWARDING A TASK ORDER CONTRACT FOR THE PLEASANTON BUS 
RAPID TRANSIT CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, LAVTA requires the services of a civil engineering firm to develop 
plans and specifications for the Pleasanton Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor 
Enhancement project, including providing design and project management services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn was awarded an On-Call Engineering Services 
contract by LAVTA (RFP #2016-14) covering the term of the work to be performed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn was the highest-ranking on-call engineering firm in 
the disciplines of both civil and traffic engineering; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kimley Horn and LAVTA staff have negotiated a detailed scope of 
work for the Pleasanton BRT Corridor Enhancement project at a firm fixed fee of 
$175,000;  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority that the Executive Director may enter into a 
task order contract with Kimley-Horn for $175,000 for this project; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the 
Executive Director to expend a 10% contingency amount not to exceed $17,500, for a 
total authorized amount not to exceed $192,500; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director is authorized to 

execute a task order with Kimley-Horn in a form approved by LAVTA’s Legal Counsel. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of November 2017 
           
 
                                                            _________________________________   
             Karla Brown, Chair 
 
         ATTEST: 
                                                               
       
         __________________________________ 
               Michael Tree, Executive Director 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
         Michael Conneran, Legal Counsel 



 

AGENDA 
 

ITEM 5 
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SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 
FROM: Tamara Edwards, Director of Finance 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
Review and accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and submit it to the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for award. 
 
Background 
The Administrative Services Department has prepared the CAFR following the guidelines of 
the Government Finance Officers Association and in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles for state and local governmental entities established by the Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board. There are four sections to this report: Introductory, 
Financial, Statistical and Compliance.  
 
Discussion 
Attached for your review is the draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal 
year ending June 2017. This report includes the annual audit prepared by Maze and 
Associates and staff stating that for the period audited, there were no findings.  
 
Mr. David Alvey of Maze and Associates will be attending the Finance and Administrative 
Committee meeting and the November 6, 2017 LAVTA Board of Directors meeting to 
provide an overview and answer any questions when the final CAFR is presented for 
acceptance.  
 
Recommendation 
The Finance and Administration committee recommends the Board accept the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) prior to submitting the CAFR to the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for award. 
 
Attachments: 

1.  Draft LAVTA 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
 
 

Approved:  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Livermore, California 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund of the Livermore Amador 
Valley Transit Authority (Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the Table of Contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of each major fund of the Authority as of June 30, 2017 and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof listed as part of the basic financial statements for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Change in Accounting Principles 

Management adopted the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 82 – 
Pension Issues – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, no. 68 and No. 73, which became effective 
during the year ended June 30, 2017, as noted in Note 8 and required changes in the Pension-Related 
Required Supplementary Information.  

The emphasis of this matter does not constitute a modification to our opinions. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information as listed in the Table of Contents 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as a whole.  The Introductory Section, Supplementary 
Information, and Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. 

The Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the Supplementary 
Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report October 30, 2017, on 
our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Authority’s 2016 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified 
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 26, 2016.  In our opinion, 
the summarized comparative information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.  

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 30, 2017 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The Livermore/Amador Valley Transit Authority is required to prepare financial statements in 
accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34 (GASB 34) 
beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. GASB 34 required changes to the traditional 
financial statements and disclosures, and required the preparation of a Management Discussion 
and Analysis (MD&A)– a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Authority for each fiscal year.  This MD&A is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

GASB 34 requires the format of Authority-wide financial statements, which are contained in the 
Financial Section of the accompanying report. These Authority-wide statements include a 
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities 
with the difference of the assets minus the liabilities being the Authority’s Net Position. The 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position summarizes how the Authority’s 
Net Position have changed over the fiscal year.  

Page references are to the attached fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 basic financial statements.  

 Background and Overview of the Presentation of the Financial Statements 

The Authority’s basic financial statements are comprised of four parts:  

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report
2. The Management Discussion and Analysis
3. The Basic Financial Statements
4. The Notes to the Financial Statements

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report. This is an annual report prepared by the auditor to
accompany the financial statements.

2. Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This report accompanies the GASB34
compliant financial statements. The MD&A must include:

 A brief explanation of the presentation that makes up the basic financial
statements and the relationship of one statement to another.

 Condensed financial information, allowing comparison of current and prior fiscal
periods.

 Analysis of the Authority’s overall financial position (Statement of Net Position),
and results of operations (Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position).

 Analysis of balances and transactions of major individual funds.
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 Significant capital asset and long-term debt activity.
 Any facts, decisions, or conditions known at the close of audit fieldwork that is

expected to have a significant effect on the financial position or results of
operations.

3. Basic Financial Statements. The basic Authority-wide financial statements are prepared
under a set of rules referred to by their regulatory identifier, GASB 34. The Authority-
wide financial statements are designed to provide a broader overview of the Authority’s
financial position, using an accounting basis similar to the model used in prior years.

The Statement of Net Position summarizes the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference of the two reported as Net Position (rather than equity).  The Statement of Net
Position is designed to provide information about the financial position of the Authority
as a whole, including all of its capital assets and long-term liabilities, on a full accrual
basis of accounting, similar to the accounting model used by private sector firms. Over
time, increases or decreases in Net Position could serve as an indication of whether the
overall financial position of the Authority is stable.

The following table summarizes the Net Position of governmental activities as of June
30, 2017 and June 30, 2016:

Table 1 

Statement of Net Position  
Year Ending            Year Ending 
6/30/2017         6/30/2016 

Assets:
Cash and investments $6,891,286 $6,410,503 
Receivables 5,136,796 2,590,362 
Capital assets (depreciated) 51,240131 35,665,891 
OPEB asset 531,210 425,321 

  Total assets and Deferred outflows           63,799,423 45,092,077  

Deferred Outflows 
Deferred Outflows 380,845 132,891

Liabilities:
 Accounts/Claims payable  3,963,725 2,954,527
 Due to LTF  7,909,098 5,866,550
Net Pension Liability 886,251 634,007 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows           12,759,074 9,455,084     

Deferred Inflows   
 Deferred inflows $79,607 $103,992 
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Net Position:  
Invested in capital assets, net of related  
debt  51,240,131               35,665,892    
Unrestricted 101,457 - 
              Total restricted Net Position 51,341,588            35,665,892

Assets and Deferred Outflows 

Total assets and deferred outflows amounted to $64,180,268 consisting of $12,028,082 in current 
assets such as cash and accounts receivable, $51,240,131 in capital assets primarily vehicles and 
facilities including furnishings and equipment, and $380,845 in pension related deferred 
outflows. Notes 2, 3, and 8 further describe Cash and Investments, Capital Assets and Pension 
related expenses, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions.  In 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the capital projects below were ongoing: 

Bus Shelters and Stops  
The Authority is in the process of repairing, renovating, and improving the older bus shelters 
within the system.  

TPI Project 
LAVTA has partnered with the City of Dublin in a project that will include adaptive signal 
control technology, queue jumps, and a mobile real time bus arrival app. The goal of this project 
is to decrease trip times along Dublin Blvd. and improve the transit passenger’s experience.  

Bus Replacement 
In FY 2018 LAVTA will be replacing twenty fixed route vehicles that have reached the end of 
their useful lives.  Although the buses will be received and put into service in primarily in FY 
2018, expenses were incurred in FY 2017 as part of the procurement process as well as 
inspection of the buses before delivery, and two of the twenty buses were delivered just before 
year end.   

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 

Liabilities and deferred inflows totaled $12,838,681 consisting primarily of accounts payable and 
money due to the LTF. Local Transportation Funds are held at the county and are available to the 
Authority for future capital and operating needs.  The legislated requirement that all Local 
Transportation Funds be held at the county on behalf of the Authority causes the agency’s 
financial position to look weaker than it would if those reserves were included in the agency’s 
assets. At fiscal year end the agency had an estimated $10,086,034 in reserves.  

Net Position 

Change of Net Position was $15,675,696 this increase in Net Position is due to the additions of 
capital assets being greater than the depreciation on existing capital assets.   



8

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position provides information about 
the Authority’s revenues and expenses on the full accrual basis, with an emphasis on measuring 
the net revenues or expenses for each of the Authority’s main activities. The Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position explains in detail the change in Net Position for 
a given year. The amounts in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
represent four programs: fixed route and paratransit bus services, WHEELS on Demand, and 
Rail Planning activities. The Basic Financial Statements divide all revenues and expenses by 
program. The analysis in this discussion applies to both programs.   

The following table summarizes the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net 
Position, or the change in Net Position of governmental activities, for the year ended June 30, 
2017 and June 30, 2016: 

Table 2 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 

Year Ending 
6/30/2017 

Year Ending 
  6/30/2016 

EXPENSES 
Expenses, non-capital 
 Board of Directors $14,000 $12,400
 Executive Director 389,213 286,187
 Administrative Services 1,774,636 1,626,818
 Planning              635,082              872,266 
 Marketing 749,882 380,240
 Operations 12,150,840 12,354,542

Total Expenses, non-capital 15,713,653 15,532,453
Expenses, capital 

Depreciation 2,899,301 2,851,726
      Total Expenses, capital          2,899,301 2,851,726

Total expenses 18,612954 18,384,179

REVENUES 
Program operating revenues: 
  Fare and contract revenues $2,100,641 $2,239,549
  Advertising and ticket concessions 220,205 207,674
      Total operating revenues 2,320,846 2,447,223
Non-operating revenues, non-capital: 

 Operating grants and contributions 13,425,282 13,085,230
      Total non-operating revenues, non-capital 13,425,282 13,085,230

Total non-capital revenues 15,814,240 15,532,453

 Net Loss Before Capital Contributions 2,866,826 2,851,726
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Non-operating revenues, capital 
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Equipment 54,800 0

Total Gain (Loss) 54,800 0
Net non-operating revenues before capital 
contributions (grants) 

 Capital grants, net
13,480,082 13,085,230

Total capital grants, net 18,487,722 272,199
Total revenues $34,288,650 $15,804,652

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 15,675,696 (2,579,527)
Net Position, beginning 35,665,892 38,245,419
Net Position, ending 51,341,588 35,665,892

Expenses 

Total expenses including depreciation (which was $2,899,301) were $18,612,954 in the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2017.  Adjusting for depreciation this was an 1.4% increase over the prior 
year.  The increase in expenses was driven by a number of factors, including contract increases 
for the purchased transportation providers and the costs associated with both WHEELS on 
Demand and the Rail Planning function.   

Expenses, excluding depreciation, are sorted by department. A brief description of each 
department’s function is as follows: 

 Board of Directors All the costs associated with the Board of Directors
including their stipends and professional development expenses are charged to
this department.

 Executive Director The Executive Director is responsible for the general
supervision of the administration of the transit system. All costs associated with
this position are accounted for in this cost center. The majority of the expenses
charged to this department are the Executive Director’s salary and benefits.

 Administrative Services Specific department responsibilities include:
preparation of operating and capital budgets; financial reporting and analysis;
oversight of all financial and compliance audits and preparation of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR); human resources
management; procurement oversight; administration of federal, state, and local
operating and capital grants; securing federal, state and local grants, monitoring
of Authority’s comprehensive insurance program; fixed asset management;
facilities maintenance; fare and revenue collection; customer service, and
general office administration. Significant costs charged to this department are
salary and benefits for the eight accounting, grants, administrative and customer
service positions, as well as utilities and facility maintenance expenses.
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 Planning This department plans, organizes, directs, and implements the
Authority’s short and long-range planning programs. This department is also
responsible for transit development functions including capital improvement
programs, route planning and scheduling, collection and evaluation of
operations data, oversight of information technology support, implementation
and monitoring of ADA services.  Primary costs in this department are for
salary and benefits for four positions.

 Marketing The Marketing Department is responsible for planning, organizing,
directing, and implementing the Authority’s marketing and community outreach
programs. In addition to salary and benefits for two employees all printing,
advertising, and outside marketing services are charged to this department.

 Operations This department is responsible for operating and maintaining fixed
route, and Dial-A-Ride paratransit service. Fixed Route services are currently
provided under contract by MV Transportation, Inc., and Dial-a-Ride is
provided under contract with Medical Transportation Management, both are
private transit services providers.  In addition to the cost of purchased
transportation, liability insurance, and fuel are significant costs attributed to this
department.

 Depreciation is the final category of expenses. This is the current year
depreciation on existing capital assets calculated on a straight-line basis.

A historical comparison of expenses by department is also included in the statistical section of 
this report. Below are the percentages by department for the fiscal year ending June 2017. 
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 Revenues 

The Authority’s primary source of operating revenue is Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Article 4.0 and 4.5 funds. In FY17, TDA accounted for 50% of total operating revenue. The rest 
of the revenue is comprised of Federal Transit Assistance, Passenger Fares, State Transit 
Assistance, Measures B, and BB, Bridge Tolls, Advertising and Ticket Concessions, and Interest.  

Federal operating funds accounted for $591,122 or 4% of the total; this is an increase over the 
prior year.  

Revenue generated from operations (farebox, contract, and advertising revenues) decreased from 
the prior year.  

The statistical section of this report presents all the revenue sources by year for the previous ten 
years. Below are percentages by funding source for the fiscal year ending June 2017. 

Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions in the fiscal year ending June 2017 were $18,474,410 which is an increase 
over the capital contributions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 of $272,199.  The increase 
in capital contributions is attributed to the increase in capital spending, brought on by the major 
bus purchase in FY17.  Below are percentages by capital funding source for the fiscal year 
ending June 2017. 
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4. Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is important to a full understanding of the
data provided in the Authority-wide, and the traditional fund-based, financial statements.

Finally, there were no facts, decisions, or conditions known at the close of fieldwork that are 
expected to have a significant effect on the financial position or results of operations.  

Contacting Authority Management 

These Basic Financial Statements are intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances. Questions about this Report should 
be directed to the Authority, at Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, 1362 Rutan Court, 
Suite 100, Livermore, CA 94551. 



WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

2017
Fixed Route Paratransit WHEELS 2016

Program Program on Demand Rail Planning Totals Totals
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments (Note 2) $6,891,286 $6,891,286 $6,410,503
Receivables:

Accounts 1,165,993 $435,892 $3,305 $90,800 1,695,990 1,965,184
Capital grants 3,006,487 3,006,487 178,776

Due from other fund (Note 1I) 245,910 245,910 222,031
Prepaid expenses 188,409 188,409 224,372

Total current assets 11,498,085 435,892 3,305 90,800 12,028,082 9,000,866

Noncurrent Assets

OPEB Asset (Note 10) 531,210 531,210 425,321
Capital Assets (Note 3):

Land and construction in progress 29,329,029 29,329,029 26,761,995
Depreciable assets 54,098,970 40,452 54,139,422 46,836,245

Subtotal capital assets 83,427,999 40,452 83,468,451 73,598,240
Less: accumulated depreciation (32,197,199) (31,121) (32,228,320) (37,932,349)

Capital assets, net 51,230,800 9,331 51,240,131 35,665,891

Total noncurrent assets 51,762,010 9,331 51,771,341 36,091,212

Total Assets 63,260,095 445,223 3,305 90,800 63,799,423 45,092,078

Pension related (Note 8) 380,845 380,845 132,891

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Due to other funds (Note 1I) 168,068 842 77,000 245,910 222,031
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,547,195 267,823 5,393 13,800 2,834,211 874,306
Claims payable (Note 1E) 64,788 64,788 175,124

Total current liabilities 2,611,983 435,891 6,235 90,800 3,144,909 1,271,461

Noncurrent Liabilities

Unearned revenues (Note 6) 818,815 818,815 1,683,067
Due to LTF Operating (Note 4) 7,909,098 7,909,098 5,866,550
Net pension liability (Note 8) 886,251 886,251 634,007

Total noncurrent liabilities 9,614,164 9,614,164 8,183,624

Total Liabilities 12,226,147 435,891 6,235 90,800 12,759,073 9,455,085

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related (Note 8) 79,607 79,607 103,992

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets (Note 7) 51,230,800 9,331 51,240,131 35,665,892
Unrestricted (Note 7) 104,386 1 (2,930) 101,457

Total Net Position $51,335,186 $9,332 ($2,930) $51,341,588 $35,665,892

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2017
Fixed Route Paratransit WHEELS 2016

Program Program on Demand Rail Planning Totals Totals

PROGRAM OPERATING REVENUES
Fare revenues $1,433,479 $180,063 $1,613,542 $1,843,292
Special contract revenue 443,139 43,960 487,099 396,257
Advertising and ticket concessions 138,873 $81,332 220,205 207,674

Total program operating revenues 2,015,491 224,023 81,332 2,320,846 2,447,223

PROGRAM OPERATING EXPENSES
Board of Directors 11,076 1,400 $124 1,400 14,000 12,400
Executive Director 222,756 188 166,269 389,213 286,187
Administrative services 1,760,949 9,886 215 3,586 1,774,636 1,626,818
Planning 381,023 221,668 32,391 635,082 872,266
Marketing 717,692 31,313 877 749,882 380,240
Operations 10,520,789 1,623,440 6,611 12,150,840 12,354,542
Depreciation (Note 3) 2,896,188 3,113 2,899,301 2,851,726

Total program operating expenses 16,510,473 1,859,507 70,842 172,132 18,612,954 18,384,179

PROGRAM OPERATING LOSSES (14,494,982) (1,635,484) (70,842) (90,800) (16,292,108) (15,936,956)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and miscellaneous 198,014 198,014 99,315
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 6,868,132 660,819 67,537 7,596,488 7,631,278
Local Transportation Funds 4.5 123,457 123,457 129,379
State Transit Assistance 1,663,237 34,738 1,697,975 1,862,911
Local Operating Assistance 137,500 137,500 263,750
FTA operating assistance 591,122 350,443 941,565 536,514
Local Sales Tax/Measure B and BB funds:

Allocations 918,339 173,813 1,092,152 1,049,002
Measure B grants
Measure BB grants 674,089 289,101 3,305 966,495 932,245

Bridge tolls 580,836 90,800 671,636 580,836
Gain (Loss) on disposal of equipment 54,800 54,800

Net non-operating revenues, before
capital contributions (grants) 11,686,069 1,632,371 70,842 90,800 13,480,082 13,085,230

Capital contributions (grants) (Note 6):
FTA capital assistance 14,004,539 14,004,539 62,522
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 3,087,479 3,087,479 82,892
State Bond Fund - Prop 1B 862,449 862,449 111,765
Bridge tolls 519,943 519,943 15,020
Proceede from Bus Sales 13,312 13,312

Total capital contributions (grants) 18,487,722 18,487,722 272,199

Net non-operating revenues and contributions 30,173,791 1,632,371 70,842 90,800 31,967,804 13,357,429

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 15,678,809 (3,113) 15,675,696 (2,579,527)
Transfers in (2,930) (2,930)
Transfers out 2,930 2,930

Change in net position 15,681,739 (3,113) (2,930) 15,675,696 (2,579,527)

NET POSITION,
Beginning of Year 35,653,447 12,445 35,665,892 38,245,419

End of Year $51,335,186 $9,332 ($2,930) $51,341,588 $35,665,892

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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2017
Fixed Route Paratransit WHEELS 2016

Program Program on Demand Rail Planning Totals Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $2,331,964 $224,023 ($3,305) ($9,468) $2,543,214 $1,595,921
Payments to vendors (9,172,206) (1,695,692) (33,058) (86,487) (10,987,443) (13,435,085)
Payments to and on behalf of employees (1,821,008) (133,470) (32,391) (71,845) (2,058,714) (1,930,566)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (8,661,250) (1,605,139) (68,754) (167,800) (10,502,943) (13,769,730)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 198,014 198,014 99,315

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 8,910,680 660,819 67,537 9,639,036 5,263,544
Local Transportation Funds 4.5 123,457 123,457 129,379
State Transit Assistance 1,663,237 34,738 1,697,975 1,862,911
TFCA 137,500 137,500 263,750
FTA operating assistance 591,122 377,174 968,296 215,628
Local sales tax/Measure B and BB funds 1,592,428 462,914 3,305 2,058,647 1,981,247
Bridge tolls 580,836 90,800 671,636 580,836
Transfers received from other funds 2,930 2,930
Transfers paid to other funds (2,930) (2,930)
Interfund payments (245,910) (222,031) (467,941) (222,031)
Interfund receipts 222,031 168,068 842 77,000 467,941 222,031

Net cash provided by noncapital and financing activities 13,454,854 1,605,139 68,754 167,800 15,296,547 10,297,295

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets (18,473,541) (18,473,541) (272,199)
Proceeds from sale of capital asset 54,800 54,800
Capital grants received:

FTA capital assistance 12,222,515 12,222,515 86,709
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 2,016,259 2,016,259 224,053
State Transit Assistance
State Bond Fund - Prop 1B (864,252) (864,252) 533,950
Bridge Tolls 533,384 533,384 37,851

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (4,510,835) (4,510,835) 610,364

NET CASH FLOWS 480,783 480,783 (2,762,756)

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,410,503 6,410,503 9,173,259

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT END OF YEAR $6,891,286 $6,891,286 $6,410,503

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating losses ($14,494,982) ($1,635,484) ($70,842) ($90,800) ($16,292,108) ($15,936,956)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 2,896,188 3,113 2,899,301 2,851,726
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts receivable 336,568 (3,305) (90,800) 242,463 (778,207)
Prepaid expenses 34,324 1,639 35,963 (145,657)
OPEB Asset (105,889) (105,889) (78,506)
Accounts payable 2,802,972 25,593 5,393 13,800 2,847,758 345,899
Claims payable (110,336) (110,336) 45,066
Net pension liability, related deferred inflows, net of deferred outflows (20,095) (20,095) (73,095)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ($8,661,250) ($1,605,139) ($68,754) ($167,800) ($10,502,943) ($13,769,730)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. General 

 Livermore/Amador Valley Transit Authority (Authority), which was established in 1985, is a Joint 
Powers Agency formed by the County of Alameda, and the Cities of Dublin, Livermore and 
Pleasanton to provide transportation services within the Cities’ limits and portions of the 
unincorporated County. The Authority is doing business under the name of “Wheels” and operates 
two transportation programs: 

Fixed Route Program - The Authority operates buses, which follow fixed routes and times 
throughout the Authority’s service area and are available to anyone able to pay the fare.   

 Paratransit Program - The Authority operates a “dial-a-ride” program for disabled persons 
pursuant to requirements of the Americans With Disability Act (ADA).  

None of these operations generate sufficient fares, special contract, advertising and ticket 
concessions revenues to cover the operating expenses. Expenses incurred in excess of these 
revenues, interest and other revenues are reimbursed with grant funds.  The programs are 
subsidized by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, which is the regional coordinating 
agency for State of California Transportation Development Act grants and the United States 
Department of Transportation with Federal Transit Administration Grants. 

Capital and planning grants are reimbursement based.  Operating grants are advanced quarterly 
and/or monthly based on reserves; any grant funds received in excess of operating expenses, net 
of other revenues, must be returned to the grantor. 

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Authority, which conform 
with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governments in the United States of 
America. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund.  This fund is a set of self-balancing accounts, 
which comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses. 

C. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized.  The Authority is 
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when 
they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.  The Authority follows 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives or receives value without directly 
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. 
On an accrual basis, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal 
year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Basis of Presentation 

The Authority’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board 
is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting 
standards followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A. 

The Authority reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds: 

Fixed Route Program - The Authority operates buses, which follow fixed routes and times 
throughout the Authority’s service area and are available to anyone able to pay the fare.   

 Paratransit Program - The Authority operates a “dial-a-ride” program for disabled persons 
pursuant to requirements of the Americans With Disability Act (ADA).  

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation.  The 
principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for farebox revenues.  The 
Authority’s operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the Authority.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses.   

E. Risk Management 

The Authority requires its operations contractor to provide general liability coverage and workers 
compensation coverage for its employees.  The Authority also provides unemployment benefits to 
terminated employees in accordance with state law.  The Authority has a commercial insurance 
policy for workers compensation coverage of its employees.  The Authority has no deductible for 
this coverage.  

On May 1, 2000, the Authority became a member of the California Transit Insurance Pool 
(CALTIP), a joint powers authority that provides annual general liability and physical damage 
coverage up to $10,000,000.  The Authority has a $25,000 deductible for general liability claims, 
a $5,000 deductible for physical damage claims on vehicles valued over $50,000 and a $2,500 
deductible for physical damage claims on vehicles with a value less than $50,000.   

CALTIP is governed by a board consisting of representatives from member municipalities.  The 
board controls the operations of CALTIP, including selection of management and approval of 
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their 
representation on the Board. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The Authority’s premiums are based upon the following factors: claims history, total payroll, the 
Authority’s exposure, the results of an on-site underwriting inspection, total insurable values, and 
employee classification ratings. Actual surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula 
developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage basis after a 
retrospective rating which generally occurs in the third year after the completion of the program 
year. 

Claims payable activity is presented below.  The outstanding balance is expected to be paid within 
the next fiscal year. 

2016-2017 2015-2016

Balance, July 1 $175,124 $130,058

Net change in liability for claims and    
claims paid but not reported 362,411 637,535
Claims paid (472,747) (592,469)

Balance, June 30 $64,788 $175,124

Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years. 

F. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Deferred Inflow/Outflow of Resources 

In additional to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows 
or resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net positon or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows 
or resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

H.     Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The Authority 
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in 
measuring fair value are observable in the market.   

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair 
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

I.       Interfund Transactions 

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid 
shortly after the end of the fiscal year. 

J.       New Funds 

WHEELS on Demand 

WHEELS on Demand is a partnership with the private sector to provide service to low density 
suburban areas where previously existing Wheels bus service could not be supported.  WHEELS on 
Demand is an extension of a traditional user-side subsidy program which is used by transit systems 
nationwide to partner with taxi-cab companies, and extends the partnership to Transportation 
Network Companies (TNC) such as Uber and Lyft.  As a user-side subsidy program, LAVTA 
leaves the decision making in the customer’s hand about which provider to utilize.  WHEELS on 
Demand is a demonstration project with the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
providing funding to cover 50% of the operating costs.  

Rail Planning 

The Tri-Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Working Group is made up of representatives from 
the local cities of Alameda County and San Joaquin County. The purpose of this group is to move the 
BART to Livermore project forward and find a better connection between BART and ACE. The Joint 
Powers Agency still has not been formally established, however, the Authority is acting as the 
administrative resource for this group. 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 

Local Agency Investment Fund $661,869
Cash in bank 6,228,677
Cash on hand 740

  Total Cash and Investments $6,891,286

A. Investments Authorized by the Authority’s Investment Policy 

The Authority’s investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment 
pool administered by the State of California (LAIF).  The Authority’s investment policy does not 
contain any specific provisions intended to limit the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.   

B. Interest Rate Risk  

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value is to changes in market interest rates.   

The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California.  The Authority reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by 
LAIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share.  The balance available for withdrawal on 
demand is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage 
obligation, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, 
and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United 
States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.  At June 30, 2017, these investments matured in 
an average of 194 days.  

The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair market value at each 
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in interest income for that fiscal year. 

C. Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  LAIF does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.   

D. Concentration of Credit Risk  

The investment policy of the Authority contains no limitations on the amount that may be invested 
in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.   
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

E. Fair Value Hierarchy 

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure fair value of the assets.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. 

The Authority only invests in Local Agency Investment Fund, which is exempt from the fair value 
leveling, and is valued at amortized cost.  The value is based on the fair value factor provided by the 
Treasurer of the State of California, which is calculated as the fair value divided by the amortized 
cost of the investment pool 

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.  The 
Authority’s policy is to capitalize all assets when costs exceed $5,000.  The purpose of 
depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets over the life of these assets.  The amount 
charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of the cost of 
capital assets. 

Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the 
total amount of depreciation taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is reported on 
the balance sheet as a reduction in the book value of the capital assets. 

Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means 
the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to 
expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated.  The Authority has assigned the useful lives 
as follows: Facilities - 30 years, Vehicles - 2–12 years, and Equipment - 5–10 years. 
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Capital assets comprised the following at June 30, 2017: 

Balance 
June 30, 2016

Additions / 
Adjustments Retirements

Balance 
June 30, 2017

Fixed Route:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $3,973,472 $3,973,472
Construction in Progress 22,788,523 $2,567,034 25,355,557

Total capital assets not being depreciated 26,761,995 2,567,034 29,329,029

Capital assets being depreciated:
Vehicles 33,126,906 15,727,905 ($8,617,512) 40,237,299
Facilities 8,423,562 152,462 8,576,024
Equipment 5,245,325 40,322 5,285,647

Total capital assets being depreciated 46,795,793 15,920,689 (8,617,512) 54,098,970

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Vehicles (27,221,426) (2,584,258) 8,603,330 (21,202,354)
Facilities (5,753,640) (280,693) (6,034,333)
Equipment (4,929,275) (31,237) (4,960,512)

Total accumulated depreciation (37,904,341) (2,896,188) 8,603,330 (32,197,199)

Total depreciable assets 8,891,452 13,024,501 (14,182) 21,901,771

Capital assets, net $35,653,447 $15,591,535 ($14,182) $51,230,800

Paratransit
Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities $40,452 $40,452

Total capital assets being depreciated 40,452 40,452

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities (28,008) ($3,113) (31,121)

Total accumulated depreciation (28,008) (3,113) (31,121)

Total depreciable assets 12,444 (3,113) 9,331

Capital assets, net $12,444 ($3,113) $9,331

Total
Land and Construction in Progress $26,761,995 $2,567,034 $29,329,029
Depreciable Assets:

Cost 46,836,245 15,920,689 ($8,617,512) 54,139,422
Less accumulated depreciation for: (37,932,349) (2,899,301) 8,603,330 (32,228,320)

Net 8,903,896 $13,021,388 ($14,182) 21,911,102

All Capital Assets, net $35,665,891 $51,240,131
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NOTE 4 – OPERATING GRANTS 

Under the State Transportation Development Act (the Act), the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) allocates funds from the County Local Transportation Fund (LTF) based on 
the Authority’s available balance determined at the beginning of each fiscal year and the amount 
that the Authority requests through an annual claim process.  At June 30, 2017, the MTC had 
unallocated balances not yet granted to the Authority, which are available to fund the Authority’s 
future operating and capital needs.  These funds are retained, in accordance with the California 
Administrative Code, in the LTF at the County of Alameda based on terms and conditions 
determined by MTC.  A summary of these unallocated balances as of June 30, 2017 follows: 

Unallocated 
Source  Balances

Transportation Development Act Funds $9,304,213 
State Transit Assistance Funds: 

Revenue Based Funds 177,130 
Population Based Funds  604,691 

Total Unallocated Local Transportation Funds $10,086,034 
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NOTE 4 – OPERATING GRANTS (Continued) 

The Authority’s operating needs are determined as set forth below, by adjusting operating losses 
for certain items and adding back grant funding.  MTC allocates State Transit Assistance, Article 
4.0 and Article 4.5 funds to cover remaining net operating expenses.  Under the Act, Article 4.0 
funds may be used to cover Fixed Route Program and Paratransit Program expenses; Article 4.5 
funds may only be used to cover Paratransit Program expenses.  Unexpended grant funds at June 
30, 2017 are calculated as follows: 

Fiscal 2017 unexpended funds: Fixed Route Paratransit 
Program Program Total

Operating loss ($14,494,982) ($1,635,484) ($16,130,466)

Add back:
 Depreciation 2,896,188 3,113 2,899,301

  Interest and miscellaneous 198,014 198,014
  Proceedes from Bus Sales 13,312 13,312

Net operating expenses reimbursable by grants (11,387,468) (1,632,371) (13,019,839)

Grants:
County Measure B Grants 918,339 173,813 1,092,152
County Measure BB Grants 674,089 289,101 963,190
Local Operating Assistance 137,500 137,500
Bridge Tolls 580,836 580,836
Federal Transportation Administration:

    Operating Assistance 591,122 350,443 941,565

Net Operating Expenses reimbursable by
  LTF and STA funds (8,485,582) (819,014) (9,304,596)

State Transit Assistance Receipts 1,663,237 34,738 1,697,975
LTF Receipts:
  Article 4.0 8,910,680 660,819 9,571,499
  Article 4.5 123,457 123,457

Due to LTF - fiscal year 2016/2017 2,088,335 2,088,335

Due to LTF - beginning of year 5,866,550 5,866,550

Due to LTF - end of year $7,954,885 $7,954,885
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NOTE 5 - PARATRANSIT OPERATING GRANT LIMITATIONS 

A. General 

In addition to the calculations discussed in Note 4, two additional calculations for the Paratransit 
Program are required by MTC to determine eligibility and the amount, if any, that should be paid 
back to the County.  The two calculations consist of a local match requirement of 10% and an 
eligibility requirement, as set forth below. 

B. Local Match Requirement 

Transit agencies are normally required to generate local revenues in excess of ten percent of 
operating expenses excluding depreciation.  However the Transportation Development Act 
exempts LAVTA from this requirement. 

C. Maximum Article 4.5 and Measure B Eligibility 

Alameda County Measure B funds and Article 4.5 funds are limited to a maximum eligibility 
amount, which is calculated as follows: 

2017 2016

Operating expenses excluding depreciation $1,856,394 $1,976,967
Less:  
    Actual passenger fare revenues (180,063) (196,223)
    Special contract revenue (43,960) (36,303)
    Article 4.0 LTF revenues (660,819) (775,595)

Maximum eligibility $971,552 $968,846

The amount, if any, due to Alameda County is computed as follows:

Maximum eligibility $971,552 $968,846
Less:
    Article 4.5 LTF revenues (123,457) (129,379)
    State Transit Assistance (34,738) (47,368)
    FTA operating assistance (350,443) (345,340)
    Local sales tax/Measure B funds (173,813) (166,946)
    Local sales tax/Measure BB funds (289,101) (279,813)

Deficit (surplus) of Measure B revenue over 
 maximum eligibility $0 $0
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NOTE 5 - PARATRANSIT OPERATING GRANT LIMITATIONS (Continued) 

D. Article 4.5 and STA Funds to be Returned 

The amount due to LTF is the difference between maximum eligibility and the total of TDA Article 
4.5 revenues, if the total is greater than maximum eligibility. 

2017 2016

Maximum eligibility computed above $971,552 $968,846

Total TDA Article 4.5 revenues $123,457 $129,379

Amount, if any, to be returned to LTF $0 $0

Amount, if any, to be returned to Alameda 
County $0 $0

State Transit Assistance received by the Authority amounted to $1,697,975 during fiscal year 2016-
2017, which was expended for operating expenses of the Fixed Route Program. 

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL GRANTS 

A. Summary 

 The Authority’s capital transactions and unexpended grant funds at June 30, 2017 are calculated as 
follows: 

Fixed Route Paratransit 
Program Program Total

Capital costs:
Capital asset additions ($18,487,723) ($18,487,723)

Funding sources:
FTA Capital Assistance $14,017,851 $14,017,851
Local Transportation Fund 4.0 3,087,480 3,087,480
State Bond Fund - Prop 1B 862,449 862,449
Bridge tolls 519,943 519,943

Total Funding Sources $18,487,723 $18,487,723

B. Prop 1B (PTMISEA) Projects 

During fiscal year 2008, the Authority had established two PTMISEA Projects which are the Bus 
Stop Improvements and the Route 10 Bus Rapid Transit Project.  The Bus Stop Improvements 
Project is to improve bus stops within a quarter mile of low or very low income housing or at 
important life support destinations such as medical facilities, public services transportation hubs 
employment sites and shopping center.  The Route 10 Bus Rapid Transit Project is to assist the new 
Route 10 line to optimize the mobility of all residents within the Cities of Livermore and Dublin to 
the I-580 and I-680 corridors. 
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL GRANTS (Continued) 

A summary of the Authority’s outstanding Proposition 1B revenue and expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Grant Unearned
Project Name Amount Prior Years 2016-17 Prior Years 2016-17 Revenue

PTMISEA PROGRAMS:
FY 16 Upgrades and Improvements $125,625 $226 $950 $126,801
FY 15 Upgrades and Improvements 361,514 1,744 2,136 $39,320 $118,146 207,928
FY 15 Bus Replacement 572,778 2,764 282 575,824
FY14 Bus Stop Repair 240,910 1,448 882 125,428 117,812

OTHER PROGRAMS:
FY15 California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) 36,696 94 278 22,279 14,789
FY14 California Transit Security Grant Program 36,696 94 199 36,989
FY13 Surveillance Equipment/Cameras 36,696 205 1 35,400 1,502
FY12 Surveillance Equipment/Cameras 36,696 131 36,827
FY11 Surveillance Equipment/Fleet DVRs 36,747 299 37,046

Total Prop 1B $1,484,358 $7,005 $4,728 $274,021 $754,740 467,330

  Other Unearned Revenues 351,485
Total Unearned Revenues $818,815

Expended in FiscalInterest Earned

NOTE 7 – NET POSITION 

Net Position is the excess of all the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows over all its liabilities 
and deferred inflows, regardless of fund.  Net Position is described as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the 
current net book value of the Authority’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt 
issued to finance these assets. 

Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of the net amount of the assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. The 
Authority first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to 
participate in the Authority’s Miscellaneous Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS).  Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Authority 
resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the 
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be 
found on the CalPERS website. 
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of 
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and 
beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 
years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 
Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments 
for the plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous Tier I Miscellaneous PEPRA

Hire date
Prior to        

January 1, 2013
On or after       

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67

1.426% - 2.418% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 8.880% 6.555%

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation

Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by 
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding 
contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by 
CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability.  The Authority is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.   

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the 
Plan were as follows: 

Miscellaneous
Contributions - employer $125,806

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

As of June 30, 2017, the Authority reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of 
the net pension liability of the Plan as follows: 

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous $886,251
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

The Authority’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update 
procedures.  The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  The Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 was as 
follows: 

Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.02310%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.02551%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00241%

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of $105,711.  At 
June 30, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $125,806
Differences between actual and expected experience 4,067 ($932)
Changes in assumptions (38,481)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 200,280
Change in proportion and differences between actual 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 50,692  (40,194)   

Total $380,845 ($79,607)

$125,806 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2018.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(inflows)

June 30 of Resources
2018 $15,477
2019 21,888
2020 86,193
2021 51,874

Thereafter -
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Miscellaneous Plan
Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (1)
Mortality Rate Table1 Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds 
Post Retirement Benefit 
Increase

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 
20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this 
table, please refer to the CalPERS 2014 experience study report available on CalPERS website.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 
2013 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the 
period 1997 to 2011.  Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.  

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for the 
Plan.  To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a 
discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount 
rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none 
of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50% discount rate is adequate and 
the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount 
rate of 7.50% will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The 
stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS 
website.    
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined 
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50% investment return 
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses.   Administrative 
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative 
expenses would have been 7.65%.  Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher 
Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for 
the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference. 

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes 
to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, 
CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 
68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the 
materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the 
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using 
the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one 
quarter of one percent.  

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return 
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.  

Asset Class
Policy Target

Allocation
Real Return

Years 1 - 10(a)
Real Return
Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.0% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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NOTE 8 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Discount Rate
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%

Miscellaneous $1,472,791 $886,251 $401,506  

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.   

NOTE 9 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Authority employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority 
sponsored Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457.  Under this plan, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their 
compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made only at termination, retirement, 
death or in an emergency as defined by the Plan. 

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust 
for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.  Since the assets held under 
these plans are not the Authority’s property and are not subject to Authority control, they have 
been excluded from these financial statements.  

NOTE 10 – RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS 

A. Summary 

The Authority provides postretirement health care benefits to full time employees who retire 
directly from the Authority after attaining the age of 50 with 5 years of service.  As of June 30, 
2017, there were 12 participants receiving these health care benefits.   

The Authority implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.  This Statement establishes uniform financial reporting standards 
for employers providing postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).  The provisions 
of this Statement are applied prospectively and do not affect prior year’s financial statements. 
Required disclosures are presented below. 
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NOTE 10 – RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 

The Authority joined the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), an agent multiple-
employer plan administered by CALPERS, consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans. 
This trust is not considered a component unit of the Authority and has been excluded from these 
financial statements.  Separately issued financial statements for CERBT may be obtained from 
CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. 

In order to qualify for postemployment medical benefits, an employee, hired before July 1, 2010 
must retire from the Authority and maintain enrollment in one of Authority’s eligible health plans. 
The Authority pays 100% of the medical premium for each employee or retiree and his or her 
family members (including survivors, if covered at the time of the employees death) up to a 
maximum of the premium for the highest cost HMO. 

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010 are subject to Governmental Code 22893 which requires 
the Authority to pay 100% of the weighted average of the health benefit plan premiums for 
employees or annuitants enrolled for self alone plus 90% of the weighted average of the additional 
premiums required for enrollment of family members in one of the Authority’s eligible health plans. 

B. Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions 

The Authority’s policy, according to Resolution 17-2010, is to fund the Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) of these benefits by accumulating assets with CERBT discussed above 
pursuant to the Authority’s annual budget approved by Board.  The annual required contribution 
(ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal 
actuarial cost method.  This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into account those 
benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 7% investment rate of return, (b) 2.75% projected annual salary increase, 
(c) 2.75% inflation,  and (d) health care cost rate of 4% per year  for medical benefits.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to revision at least tri-ennially as results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future.  The Authority’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using a ten year amortization period on a 
closed basis.   
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NOTE 10 – RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS (Continued) 

C. Funding Progress and Funded Status 

Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and 
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable 
trust or equivalent arrangement.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Authority 
calculated and recorded the Net OPEB Obligation, representing the difference between the ARC, 
amortization and contributions, as presented below: 

Annual required contribution (ARC) $86,091
Interest on Net OPEB Asset 29,772    
Adjustment to the ARC 22,755    

Annual OPEB cost 138,618

Contributions made:
Authority's portion of current year premiums paid 123,756    
Contributions to the trust 120,751   

Total contributions 244,507   

Increase in Net OPEB Asset 105,889   

Net OPEB Asset at June 30, 2016 425,321    

Net OPEB Asset at June 30, 2017 $531,210

The Plan’s annual required contributions and actual contributions for the years ended June 30, 2015, 
June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2017 are set forth below: 

Fiscal Year
Annual OPEB 
Cost (AOC)

Actual 
Contribution

Percentage of 
AOC Contributed

Net OPEB 
(Obligation)

Asset
6/30/2015 $142,127 $246,999 174% $346,815
6/30/2016 126,619  205,125  162% 425,321
6/30/2017 138,618  244,507  176% 531,210

The Schedule of Funding Progress below, and the required supplementary information provided 
immediately following the footnotes, presents trend information about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits.  Trend data from the actuarial study is presented below: 

(Underfunded)
Actuarial Actuarial

Overfunded Liability as
(Underfunded) Percentage

Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2015 $1,024,956 $1,341,384 ($316,428) 76% $1,788,605 -18%
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NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business.  In the opinion of 
the Authority’s legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of the Authority. 

The Authority participates in Federal and State grant programs.  These programs have been 
audited by the Authority’s independent auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Federal 
Single Audit Act as amended and applicable State requirements.  No cost disallowances were 
proposed as a result of these audits; however, these programs are still subject to further 
examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time.  The Authority expects such amounts, if any, 
to be immaterial. 

NOTE 12 - MAJOR CONTRACTOR 

During fiscal year 2010-2011, the Authority renewed its contract agreement with MV 
Transportation Inc. to operate and maintain the fixed route program.  The term is from July 1, 
2011, to June 30, 2014, with an option to extend up to four additional one-year terms.  The 
contract was extended through June 30, 2017.  MV Transportation Inc. is paid monthly based on 
a fixed fee plus a fee calculated at a fixed rate of $41.85 per vehicle multiplied by the number of 
service hours.  Expenses incurred under this contract amounted to $8,586,826 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

During fiscal year 2013-2014, the Authority entered into a contract agreement with Medical 
Transportation Management, Inc., to operate and maintain the Paratransit program. The term of this 
agreement is from May 1, 2014 to June 30, 2017, with an option to extend for up to four additional 
one-year terms. Medical Transportation Management is paid monthly based on a fixed rate per-trip 
less a Paratransit fare credit per-ride due to the Authority.  Expenses incurred under this contract 
amounted to $1,788,167 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan 

As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 
Last 10 Years*  

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

Measurement Date 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.0099% 0.0231% 0.0255%
Plan's proportion share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $617,185 $634,007 $886,251
Plan's Covered Payroll $1,065,075 $1,055,059 $1,182,687
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 57.95% 60.09% 74.94%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Plan's Total Pension Liability 83.03% 83.94% 79.66%

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit changes. In 2015, benefit terms were modified to base employee pensions 
on a final three-year average salary instead of a final five-year average salary. 

Changes in assumptions.  In 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions 
resulted primarily from adjustments to expected retirement ages of general 
employees. 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan 

As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 
Last 10 Years*  

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Fiscal Year ended June 30: 2015 2016 2017

Actuarially determined contribution $107,649 $82,453 $125,806
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions (107,649)   (82,453) (125,806)
Contribution deficiency (excess) - - -

Covered-employee payroll $1,055,059 $1,182,687 $1,280,580

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 10.20% 6.97% 9.82%

Notes to Schedule 

Miscellaneous Plan
Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of

GASB Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (1)
Mortality Rate Table1 Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds 
Post Retirement Benefit 
Increase

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 
20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this 
table, please refer to the CalPERS 2014 experience study report available on CalPERS website.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan 
As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30/2011 $220,649 $723,538 ($502,889) 30% $1,599,656 -31%
6/30/2013   570,813    1,219,822  (649,009) 47%     1,696,434 -38%
6/30/2015    1,024,956    1,341,384  (316,428) 76%     1,788,605 -18%
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR OF JUNE 30, 2016

Fixed WHEELS Totals
Route Paratransit on Demand Rail Planning 2017 2016

REVENUES
Fares $1,433,479 $180,063 $1,613,542 $1,843,292
Special contract revenue 443,139 43,960 487,099 396,257
Advertising and concessions 138,873 $81,332 220,205 207,674
Interest and miscellaneous 198,014 198,014 99,315
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 6,868,132 660,819 $67,537 7,596,488 7,631,278
Local Transportation Funds 4.5 123,457 123,457 129,379
State Transit Assistance 1,663,237 34,738 1,697,975 1,862,911
Local operating assistance 137,500 137,500 263,750
FTA operating assistance 591,122 350,443 941,565 536,514
Local sales tax/Measure B funds - allocation 918,339 173,813 1,092,152 1,049,002
Local sales tax/Measure BB funds 674,089 289,101 3,305 966,495 932,245
Bridge tolls and concessions 580,836 90,800 671,636 580,836

Total Revenues $13,646,760 $1,856,394 $70,842 $172,132 $15,746,128 $15,532,453

EXPENSES
Labor $1,252,115 $104,784 $29,393 $57,395 1,443,687 $1,401,538
Fringe benefits 568,893 28,686 2,998 14,450 615,027 529,028
Services 381,116 67,289 14,469 96,594 559,468 993,477
Purchased transportation 8,714,347 1,617,401 6,611 10,338,359 10,449,586
Fuel, parts, supplies and other operation cost 1,727,273 4,170 2,766 1,734,209 1,123,514
Insurance 503,795 2,313 506,108 620,134
Administration and legal 512,533 31,751 17,371 927 562,582 415,176
Depreciation 2,896,188 3,113 2,899,301 2,851,726

Total Expenses $16,556,260 $1,859,507 $70,842 $172,132 $18,658,741 $18,384,179
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the Authority’s overall financial health.  In contrast to the financial 
section, the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial 
performance and well being have changed over time: 

1. Changes in Net Position and Statement of Net Position
2. Operating Revenues by Source
3. Operating Expenses by Function

Revenue Capacity & Demographic and Economic Information 
Revenue Capacity -These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Authority’s most 
significant local revenue source, fare box revenues. 

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial activities take place.  

Since the Authority analyzes its primary “own source” revenues using demographic data from its ridership, 
data for the above two sections have been combined for the reader. 

1. Fixed Route Service Operating Data
2. Fixed Route Operating Statistics
3. Fixed Route Safety Statistics
4. Paratransit Services-Operating Data
5. Paratransit Operating Statistics
6. Percent of On-time Departures
7. Demographic and Economic Statistics
8. Principal Employers

Debt Capacity 
The Authority has not issued any long term debt since its formation. 

Operating Information  
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in 
the Authority’s financial report relates to the services the Authority provides and the activities it performs: 

1. Full-Time Equivalent Authority Employees by Function
2. Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Sources 
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Reports for the relevant year.   
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2008 2009 2010

Operating Revenues:
Fare Revenue & Special Contract Revenue $2,439,990 $2,563,937 $2,341,303
Advertising & Ticket Concessions 272,348 336,458 327,377

Total Operating Revenues 2,712,338 2,900,395 2,668,680

Operating Expenses:
Board of Directors 15,526 24,922 10,670
Executive Director 203,844 236,926 238,527
Administrative Services 1,280,040 1,573,255 1,382,776
Planning 453,048 490,632 489,442
Marketing 462,340 399,096 432,056
Operations 12,052,937 11,922,206 10,356,462
Depreciation 3,173,773 3,090,734 3,499,951

Total Operating Expenses 17,641,508 17,737,771 16,409,884

Operating loss (14,929,170) (14,837,376) (13,741,204)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Local Transportation Funds 8,516,655 6,754,812 5,390,330
State Transit Assistance 942,300 1,901,482 817,396
Local Operating Assistance 85,883
Federal Transit Assistance 1,220,064 2,038,314 2,611,235
Measures B & BB 961,815 931,851 1,307,095
Bridge tolls 101,500 101,500
Interest and Miscellaneous 13,063 18,683 29,314
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (91,593) (177,346) (248,369)

Total Nonoperating Revenues 11,663,804 11,569,296 9,992,884

Add Capital contributions (grants)
STP/CMAQ Grant
FTA Capital Assistance 2,732,848 698,618 10,009,505
Local Transportation Funds 4.0 1,071,421 522,895 2,030,479
AVL State
Bridge Tolls 621,139 74,999
Local Sales / Measure B 109,200
State Bond Fund - Prop 1B 812,646 265,557
State Transit Assistance
STIP 1,500,000
Contractor Contribution
Proceedes from Bus Sales

Total Capital Contributions 5,304,269 2,764,498 12,380,540

       Change in net position 2,038,903 (503,582) 8,632,220

Net position - beginning of period 25,734,694 27,773,597 27,270,015

Net position - end of period $27,773,597 $27,270,015 $35,902,235

Statement of Net Position
         Net investment in capital assets $27,773,597 $27,270,015 $35,902,235

Source:  LAVTA's basic financial statements.

LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Financial Trends

Changes in Net Position and Statement of Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$2,238,915 $2,224,902 $2,482,825 $2,206,694 $2,253,853 $2,239,549 $2,100,641
332,274 365,394 222,653 245,295 307,378 207,674 220,205

2,571,189 2,590,296 2,705,478 2,451,989 2,561,231 2,447,223 2,320,846

12,100 13,800 11,900 15,000 13,900 12,400 14,000
223,373 256,528 256,794 301,175 267,874 286,187 389,213

1,389,776 1,433,790 1,451,961 1,487,766 1,463,419 1,626,818 1,774,636
474,195 445,676 467,394 484,615 549,575 872,266 635,082
465,480 481,728 297,587 320,775 308,716 380,240 749,882

10,719,199 11,144,981 11,052,981 11,818,800 11,764,743 12,354,542 12,150,840
3,542,369 3,984,765 3,749,118 3,554,273 3,593,338 2,851,726 2,899,301

16,826,492 17,761,268 17,287,735 17,982,404 17,961,565 18,384,179 18,612,954

(14,255,303) (15,170,972) (14,582,257) (15,530,415) (15,400,334) (15,936,956) (16,292,108)

2,876,917 5,570,918 4,055,154 4,134,353 6,001,207 7,760,657 7,719,945
2,040,616 348,781 2,011,249 1,742,123 1,876,877 1,862,911 1,697,975

758,038 540,671 208,538 36,347 176,611 263,750 137,500
2,503,783 2,250,272 2,201,915 3,306,883 894,942 536,514 941,565
1,782,765 1,891,459 1,687,287 1,969,687 2,185,850 1,981,247 2,058,647

686,001 580,836 663,388 727,831 580,836 580,836 671,636
64,814 3,270 5,608 58,918 90,673 99,315 198,014

296,844 (218,247) (474) (14,718) (153,065) 54,800

11,009,778 10,967,960 10,832,665 11,961,424 11,653,931 13,085,230 13,480,082

6,429,256 802,913 3,991,864 403,473 86,710 62,522 14,004,539
498,903 281,898 313,069 731,653 213,514 82,892 3,087,479

225,322 70,195 773 37,851 15,020 519,943

153,154 496,713 1,242,373 537,063 111,868 111,765 862,449
114,047 9,125

2,311,645 1,688,355
104,970

13,312

7,306,635 4,112,186 7,314,981 1,672,962 449,943 272,199 18,487,722

4,061,110 (90,826) 3,565,389 (1,896,029) (3,296,460) (2,579,527) 15,675,696

35,902,235 39,963,345 39,872,519 43,437,908 41,541,879 38,245,419 35,665,892

$39,963,345 $39,872,519 $43,437,908 $41,541,879 $38,245,419 $35,665,892 $51,341,588

$39,963,345 $39,872,519 $43,437,908 $41,541,879 $38,245,419 $35,665,892 $51,341,588
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Local Operating
Local State Federal Fare Revenues Advertising Assistance, 

Fiscal Transportation Transit Transit Measures & Special Contract & Ticket Interest and
Year Funds Assistance Assistance B & BB Revenue Concessions Miscellaneous Total

2008 8,516,655 942,300 1,220,064 961,815 2,439,990 272,348 114,563 14,467,735
2009 6,754,812 1,901,482 2,038,314 931,851 2,563,937 336,458 120,183 14,647,037
2010 5,390,330 817,396 2,611,235 1,307,095 2,341,303 327,377 115,197 12,909,933
2011 3,562,918 2,040,616 2,503,783 1,782,765 2,238,915 332,274 822,852 13,284,123
2012 6,151,754 348,781 2,250,272 1,891,459 2,224,902 365,394 543,941 13,776,503
2013 4,718,542 2,011,249 2,201,915 1,687,287 2,482,825 222,653 214,146 13,538,617
2014 4,862,184 1,742,123 3,306,883 1,969,687 2,206,694 245,295 95,265 14,428,131
2015 6,582,043 1,876,877 894,942 2,185,850 2,253,853 307,378 267,284 14,368,227
2016 8,341,493 1,862,911 536,514 1,981,247 2,239,549 207,674 363,065 15,532,453
2017 8,391,581 1,697,975 941,565 2,058,647 2,100,641 220,205 335,514 15,746,128

Source:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Audit Reports
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
OPERATING  EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Board of Executive Administrative
Year Directors Director Services Planning Marketing Operations Depreciation Total

2008 15,526 203,844 1,280,040 453,048 462,340 12,052,937 3,173,773 17,641,508
2009 24,922 236,926 1,573,255 490,632 399,096 11,922,206 3,090,734 17,737,771
2010 10,670 238,527 1,382,776 489,442 432,056 10,356,462 3,499,951 16,409,884
2011 12,100 223,373 1,389,776 474,195 465,480 10,719,199 3,542,369 16,826,492
2012 13,800 256,528 1,433,790 445,676 481,728 11,144,981 3,984,765 17,761,268
2013 11,900 256,794 1,451,961 467,394 297,587 11,052,981 3,749,118 17,287,735
2014 15,000 301,175 1,487,766 484,615 320,775 11,818,800 3,554,273 17,982,404
2015 13,900 267,874 1,463,419 549,575 308,716 11,764,743 3,593,338 17,961,565
2016 12,400 286,187 1,626,818 872,266 380,240 12,354,542 2,851,726 18,384,179
2017 14,000 389,213 1,774,636 635,082 749,882 12,150,840 2,899,301 18,612,954

Source: Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Audit Reports
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
FIXED ROUTE SERVICE-OPERATING DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Operating
Expenses Fare & 
Excluding Auxiliary Operating Loss Farebox

Fiscal Insurance and Transportation Before Insurance Recovery
Year Depreciation Revenues and Depreciation Ratio

2008 12,074,017 2,517,855 (9,556,162) 20.9%
2009 12,379,790 2,655,341 (9,724,449) 21.4%
2010 10,768,750 2,446,180 (8,322,570) 22.7%
2011 11,384,641 2,383,763 (9,000,878) 20.9%
2012 12,117,793 2,409,432 (9,708,361) 19.9%
2013 12,259,747 2,531,661 (9,728,086) 20.7%
2014 12,593,085 2,255,015 (10,338,070) 17.9%
2015 12,315,547 2,357,410 (9,958,137) 19.1%
2016 12,937,607 2,214,697 (10,722,910) 17.1%
2017 13,110,490 2,015,491 (11,094,999) 15.4%

Source:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Audit Reports

Note: Fare & Auxiliary Transportation Revenues includes Fare Revenues, Special Contract Revenues, Advertising and Ticket 
Concession Revenues.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
FIXED ROUTE OPERATING STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Revenue Revenue
Year Hours Miles Passengers

2008 137,452 1,983,822 2,234,210
2009 139,304 2,017,218 2,194,898
2010 102,047 1,500,165 1,740,297
2011 111,484 1,637,604 1,712,879
2012 124,702 1,855,438 1,749,168
2013 124,353 1,822,867 1,727,085
2014 125,706 1,816,916 1,652,151
2015 125,201 1,831,125 1,650,388
2015 125,604 1,780,948 1,648,811
2017 122,837 1,726,897 1,536,084

Source: National Transit Database Report (Formerly Section 15)
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               LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
FIXED ROUTE SAFETY STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Miles Miles
Between Between Injuries/

Fiscal Year Road Calls Goal Accidents Goal Boardings Goal

2008 12,750 17,000-20,000 70,850 85,000-100,000 3/2,234,210 N/A
2009 6,861 17,000-20,000 46,912 85,000-100,000 2/2,194,898 N/A
2010 5,233 17,000-20,000 120,982 85,000-100,000 3/1,740,297 N/A
2011 5,323 17,000-20,000 139,923 85,000-100,000 3/1,712,879 N/A
2012 37,866 17,000-20,000 109,143 85,000-100,000 8/1,749,168 N/A
2013 56,965 17,000-20,000 62,857 85,000-100,000 5/1,727,085 N/A
2014 43,260 17,000-25,000 113,557 100,000 6/1,652,151 N/A
2015 44,620 17,000-25,000 83,156 100,000 7/1,650,388 N/A
2016 57,764 17,000-25,000 63,740 100,000 9/1,648,811 N/A
2017 77,720 17,000-25,000 138,737 100,000 9/1,536,084 N/A

Source:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Short Range Transit Plans Contractor Service Quality Standards
Index and NTD Safety and Security Report
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
PARATRANSIT SERVICES-OPERATING DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Operating
Expenses Fare & 
Excluding Auxiliary Operating Loss Farebox

Fiscal Insurance and Transportation Before Insurance Recovery
Year Depreciation Revenues and Depreciation Ratio

2008 2,084,737 194,483 (1,890,254) 9.3%
2009 1,805,246 245,054 (1,560,192) 13.6%
2010 1,680,661 222,500 (1,458,161) 13.2%
2011 1,671,585 187,426 (1,484,159) 11.2%
2012 1,156,372 180,864 (975,508) 15.6%
2013 1,205,257 173,817 (1,031,440) 14.4%
2014 1,363,619 196,974 (1,166,645) 14.4%
2015 1,633,002 203,821 (1,166,645) 12.5%
2016 1,974,712 232,526 (1,742,186) 11.8%
2017 1,854,081 224,023 (1,630,058) 12.1%

Source:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority

Note: Fare & Auxiliary Transportation Revenues includes Fare Revenues, Special Contract Revenues, Advertising and
 Ticket Concession Revenues
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
PARATRANSIT OPERATING STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Revenue Revenue
Year Hours Miles Passengers

2008 36,224 358,386 66,714
2009 29,689 383,051 66,870
2010 24,551 347,357 61,619
2011 22,350 312,903 56,795
2012 24,218 190,026 44,596
2013 23,807 199,011 45,704
2014 22,121 203,932 48,388
2015 36,120 386,586 55,341
2016 33,642 380,831 58,798
2017 27,631 394,847 54,121

Source: National Transit Database Report (Formerly Section 15)
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

PERCENT OF ON-TIME DEPARTURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fixed Route Paratransit
Fiscal On-Time On-Time
Year Departure Goal Departure Goal

2008 0.85 0.90-0.95 0.90 0.91-0.93
2009 0.81 0.90-0.95 0.94 0.91-0.93
2010 0.76 0.87-0.83 0.90 0.91-0.93
2011 0.81 0.87-0.83 0.97 0.91-0.93
2012 0.81 0.90 0.93 ≤ 0.95
2013 0.79 0.90 0.94 ≤ 0.95
2014 0.81 0.90 0.95 ≤ 0.95
2015 0.80 0.90 0.97 ≤ 0.95
2016 0.80 0.85 0.97 0.95
2017 0.81 0.85 0.97 0.95

Source:  Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority Short Range Transit Plans or Contractor 
Service Quality Standards Index

Note:  Charts include all available data
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total Per Capita Alameda Authority
Fiscal Authority Personal Personal Unemployment County Population
Year Population Income Income       Rate (%) Population % of County

2008 199,926 9,638,122,156 48,208 3.60% 1,543,000 12.96%

2009 202,428 9,816,295,711 48,493 5.53% 1,556,657 13.00%
2010 202,568 9,935,520,184 49,048 6.63% 1,557,749 13.00%
2011 199,073 8,896,995,748 44,692 6.17% 1,521,157 13.09%
2012 198,893 9,120,795,800 45,858 5.60% 1,532,137 12.98%
2013 202,002 9,968,724,525 49,350 5.57% 1,548,681 13.04%
2014 205,086 10,584,221,916 48,921 3.50% 1,573,254 13.04%
2015 216,684 info not avail info not avail 3.53% 1,594,569 13.59%
2016 220,469 info not avail info not avail 3.60% 1,627,865 13.54%
2017 230,968 info not avail info not avail 3.03% 1,647,704 14.02%

Source: California State Department of Finance
City CAFRS and websites
Note: All available data has been included.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Fiscal Year 

2016-17
Percentage of

Number of Total Authority
Employer Employees Rank Population

Lawrence Livermore National Lab 6,000 1 2.6%

Kaiser Permanente 3,741 2 1.6%

Workday Incorporated 2,250 3 1.0%

U.S. Government & Federal Correction Institute 2,100 4 0.9%

Safeway Incorporated 1,681 5 0.7%

Oracle 1,557 6 0.7%

Sandia National Laboratories 1,400 7 0.6%

Pleasanton Unified School District 1,444 8 0.6%

Stanford/Valleycare Medical Center 1,400 9 0.6%

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 1,300 10 0.6%

     Subtotal 22,873 9.9%

Total Authority Population 230,968

Source: City of Dublin, City of Livermore, City of Pleasanton CAFRs

NOTE:  Data from nine years prior is not available.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Full-Time Equivalent Authority Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Function
Executive Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Administrative Services 7.00 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
Planning 4.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Marketing 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 14.00 15.00 16.00 16.00 16.00

Adopted for Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Function
Executive Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Administrative Services 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 6.00
Planning 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 5.00
Marketing 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 14.00

Source:  Livermore/Amador Valley Transit Authority

Adopted for Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Function/Program
Fixed Route

Total Vehicles 64** 65 59 74 74
Average Fleet Age 8.00 8.42 7.97 8.11 8.29
Vehicles Operated In 47 48 46 51 51
  Maximum Service

Paratransit
Total Vehicles 24 21 18 18 18
Average Fleet Age 3.87 4.43 4.33 4.33 4.80
Vehicles Operated In 18 14 12 12 0
  Maximum Service

Shared Stations Maintenance Facilities 2 3 3 3 3

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Function/Program
Fixed Route

Total Vehicles 74*** 74 66 64 64
Average Fleet Age 9.40 10.40 10.27 11.20 8.09
Vehicles Operated In 51 51 49 49 47
  Maximum Service

Paratransit
Total Vehicles 15 7 4 0 0
Average Fleet Age 5.00 7.00 9.00 0.00 0.00
Vehicles Operated In 0 0 0 0 0
  Maximum Service

Shared Stations Maintenance Facilities 3 3 3 3 3
*Six vehicles on loan/leased to other agencies.
** Four vehicles on loan/leased to other agencies
*** One vehicle on loan/leased to other agency

Source: Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority
Note: n/a denotes information is not available.
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

SECTION I—SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? Yes  X No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

 X None 
Reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No 

Federal Awards 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major 
programs: Unmodified 

Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? Yes  X No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X 

None 
Reported 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes X No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
20.500 & 20.507  Federal Transit Cluster - Capital Investment 

Grants & Formula Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:      $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No 
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Our audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses or instances of 
noncompliance material to the basic financial statements. We have also issued a separate Memorandum on 
Internal Control dated October 30, 2017 which is an integral part of our audits and should be read in 
conjunction with this report. 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with Uniform 
Guidance. 

SECTION IV – STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Financial Statement Prior Year Findings 

There were no prior year Financial Statement Findings reported. 

Federal Award Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no prior year Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs reported.  



LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal 

Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

US Department of Transportation Direct Programs
Federal Transit Cluster

Formula Grants
Paratransit Operating Assistance 20.507 $341,367
Preventative Maintenance 20.507 424,167
Bus Purchase 20.507 11,498,853
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 513,572
Bus Purchase 20.507 1,282,158
Dublin Blvd. Transit Performance 20.507 400,566

Subtotal Department of Transportation Direct Programs 14,460,683

US Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs From:
Metropolitan Transportation Commission

TPI - Dublin Blvd. 20.507 115,000
TPI Marketing 20.507 5296-2016-3 73,357
Lifeline Program 20.507 CA-2016-128-01 64,517

252,874
State of California Department of Transportation

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants
Satellite Facility 20.500 CA-04-Y00-17 10,308
BRT 20.500 CA-0308-00 117,962

128,270
Subtotal Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs 381,144

Total Federal Transit Cluster 14,841,827

US Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs From:
State of California Department of Transportation

Metropolitan Transportation Planning 20.505 26,277
Transit Services Program

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 CA-16-X0064 9,584
Subtotal Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs 35,861

Total US Department of Transportation 14,877,688

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $14,877,688

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY 

The Schedule of Expenditure Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes expenditures of federal awards for the 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, California and its component units as disclosed in the notes 
to the Basic Financial Statements 

NOTE 2-BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied.  All proprietary 
funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.  Expenditures of Federal Awards reported 
on the Schedule are recognized when incurred. 

NOTE 3-DIRECT AND INDIRECT (PASS-THROUGH) FEDERAL AWARDS 

Federal awards may be granted directly to the Authority by a federal granting agency or may be granted 
to other government agencies which pass-through federal awards to the Authority.  The Schedule includes 
both of these types Federal award programs when they occur. 

NOTE 4-INDIRECT COST ELECTION  

The Authority has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Livermore, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Livermore 
Amador Valley Transit Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon October 30, 2017. Our report included an 
emphasis of a matter paragraph disclosing the implementation of new accounting principles. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated October 30, 2017 which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 30, 2017 



62 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 
 AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Livermore, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Authority’s 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s 
compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements. We issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017 which contained unmodified opinions 
on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.  

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 30, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND 
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Livermore, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Livermore Amador 
Valley Transit Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017. Our opinion included 
emphasis of matter paragraphs disclosing the effect of the implementation of new accounting principles. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. Our procedures included the applicable audit procedures 
contained in §6667 of Title 21 of California Code of Regulations and tests of compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and 
resolutions of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated October 30, 2017 which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 30, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION 

IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (PTMISEA) 

Honorable Members of the Board of Director of the 
Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
Livermore, California 

We have audited the statement of revenues and expenditures of the Livermore Amador Valley Transit 
Authority Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account 
Projects, a program of the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, California, (the Authority) in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017. 

In connection with our audit, we have read and performed the applicable audit procedures contained in 
the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account Guideline 
(Guideline) adopted by the California of Department of Transportation. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated October 30, 2017 which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 30, 2017 
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SUBJECT:  MOU with Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
 
FROM: Christy Wegener, Director of Planning and Operations 
 
DATE: November 6, 2017 
 
 
 
Action Requested 
Receive staff report and approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 
 
Background 
At the September Finance and Administration Committee and October Board meetings, staff 
presented a draft MOU with the Central Contra Costa Transit Authority (County Connection) 
for the management of the LAVTA Shared Autonomous Vehicle (SAV) project in the City of 
Dublin. The draft MOU outlined roles and responsibilities for both LAVTA and County 
Connection. At the meetings, Board members expressed support for the arrangement but 
directed staff to clarify that County Connection’s contribution to the project (project 
management) was in-kind, and was not tied to the funding that the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority (CCTA) is receiving for their SAV/GoMentum project.  Board 
members also requested that a subcommittee be formed among the LAVTA and County 
Connection Boards to oversee the project. 
 
Discussion 
Staff confirmed with County Connection that the funding for the proposed project manager 
(Rashidi Barnes, Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility) was not tied to funding CCTA 
receives for their SAV project. Staff and County Connection discussed creating a sub-
committee comprised of three Board members from the respective governing bodies to 
oversee and provide direction on the SAV project. The project manager, working under the 
supervision of LAVTA’s Director of Planning and Operations, would periodically report 
project updates to that Committee. An updated draft MOU is included as Attachment 1. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
None. The MOU envisions that County Connection will provide project management as in-
kind financial contribution to the partnership. 
 
Recommendation 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends the Board approve the MOU with 
County Connection.  
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Attachments: 
 
1. Draft Memorandum of Understanding 
2. Resolution 33-2017 
 
 

Submitted:  
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MEMORANDUM of UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN 

Central Contra Costa Transit Authority and the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by and between County Connection (CCCTA) and 
the Livermore Amador Valley Transportation Authority (LAVTA), both joint powers authorities, 
acknowledges the mutual goal of the development, evaluation and potential operation of Shared 
Automated Vehicle (SAV) Technology for the purposes of mass transit. This agreement is 
intended to facilitate a symbiotic development and evaluation program that will meet the public 
transportation needs of CCCTA and LAVTA’s service population.  Furthermore it underscores 
each party’s willingness to work together with the underlying goal of increasing the areas public 
transportation options through innovation, reducing congestion along the I-580/I-680 corridors 
and increased interagency connectivity to support a seamless transportation network.  
 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, CCCTA, a public transportation authority that provides fixed-route and paratransit 
bus service throughout the cities of Concord, Pleasant Hill, Martinez, Walnut Creek, Clayton, 
Lafayette, Orinda, Moraga, Danville, San Ramon, as well as unincorporated communities in 
Central Contra Costa County; and 
 
WHEREAS, LAVTA, a public transportation authority that provides fixed-route and paratransit 
bus service throughout the cities of Dublin, Livermore, Pleasanton, and in unincorporated areas 
of Alameda County; and 
 
WHEREAS, CCCTA and LAVTA have the expertise in providing safe, affordable and reliable 
public transportation choices within their respective service areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, CCCTA and LAVTA are dedicated to the development of SAV technology for 
Mobility-On-Demand (MOD) to solve first mile/last mile (FM/LM) commuting challenges by 
connecting residents to public transportation options via SAV’s; and 
 
WHEREAS, LAVTA has secured a grant from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) to develop, evaluate and deploy SAV technology for FM/LM connections to major 
transit nodes, that will reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CCCTA has a Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility and has agreed to 
work in-kind for LAVTA’s SAV project to represent both LAVTA’s and CCCTA’s best 
interests; and  
 
WHEREAS, a Steering Committee comprised of LAVTA and CCCTA Board Members will be 
formed to oversee and provide direction on the SAV project; and  
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THEREFORE, furtherance of this MOU and with consideration of mutual covenants, CCCTA 
and LAVTA, all parties agree to the following: 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

i. CCCTA and LAVTA agree to partner on the development and evaluation of a SAV 
public transportation option for future use within their respective service areas. This 
includes but is not limited to, the evaluation of innovative technologies needed to meet 
the goals of working within the connected vehicle environment.  
 

ii. The Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility, employee of CCCTA, will provide 
overall project management, and will not be considered an employee of LAVTA. 
 

iii. The project manager will coordinate all work with the LAVTA Director of Planning and 
Operations. 
 

iv. The decision-making process for the development and evaluation of the project phases 
will involve a steering committee comprised of both the CCCTA and LAVTA Boards. 
 

v. Any financial reporting and invoicing, required by BAAQMD, will be administered by 
LAVTA. 
 

vi. CCCTA is committed to identifying additional funding if needed to continue the 
development and evaluation of SAVs, if needed. 
 

vii. CCCTA and LAVTA agree that the SAV is to first be deployed in Dublin as previously 
planned by LAVTA.  
 

viii. Future deployment of SAV’s will focus the FM/LM commuting challenges of the I-580/ 
I-680 Transportation corridors.    
 

ix. CCCTA and LAVTA agree to communicate and meet continuously throughout the 
program to keep the project on track and to prepare for implementation of adopted 
recommendations in a timely manner.   

 
x. All data will be shared between both entities to ensure transparency and inclusion for 

better understanding to programs failures and success.  
 

xi. CCCTA and LAVTA agree to announce publicly this partnership jointly. 
 

xii. At the conclusion of the program evaluation and the adoption of recommendations by 
both entities, staff will work collaboratively to implement recommendations.  At that 
time, the parties may consider entering into a new MOU to further this collaborative 
process. 
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This understanding will be in effect November 6, 2017 through December 31, 2020. If changes 
to the above procedures are required of either party, written notice will be provided. 
 
 
   

Rick Ramacier, General Manager 
County Connection 

 

 Michael Tree, Executive Director 
Livermore Amador Valley Transportation 

Authority 
 

   
 

Date  Date 
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RESOLUTION NO. 33-2017 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE LIVERMORE AMADOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 
CENTRAL CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY (CCCTA) FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT, EVALUATION AND POTENTIAL OPERATION OF SHARED 
AUTONOMOUS VEHICLE (SAV) TECHNOLOGY FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

MASS TRANSIT 
 

WHEREAS, LAVTA, a public transportation authority that provides fixed-route 
and paratransit bus service throughout the cities of Dublin, Livermore, Pleasanton, and in 
unincorporated areas of Alameda County; and 

 
 WHEREAS, CCCTA, a public transportation authority that provides fixed-route 
and paratransit bus service throughout the cities of Concord, Pleasant Hill, Martinez, 
Walnut Creek, Clayton, Lafayette, Orinda, Moraga, Danville, San Ramon, as well as 
unincorporated communities in Central Contra Costa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, CCCTA and LAVTA have the expertise in providing safe, 
affordable and reliable public transportation choices within their respective service areas; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, CCCTA and LAVTA are dedicated to the development of SAV 
technology for Mobility-On-Demand (MOD) to solve first mile/last mile (FM/LM) 
commuting challenges by connecting residents to public transportation options via 
SAV’s; and 
 

WHEREAS, LAVTA has secured a grant from the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) to develop, evaluate and deploy SAV technology for 
FM/LM connections to major transit nodes, that will reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions; and  

 
WHEREAS, the CCCTA has a Director of Innovation and Shared Mobility and 

has agreed to work in-kind as the project manager for LAVTA’s SAV project to represent 
both LAVTA’s and CCCTA’s best interests; and  
 

WHEREAS, a Steering Committee comprised of LAVTA and CCCTA Board 
Members will be formed to oversee and provide direction on the SAV project; and  

 
 WHEREAS, LAVTA and CCCTA staff have cooperatively finalized the MOU 
for the project. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Livermore/Amador Valley Transit Authority that the Executive Director may enter into a 
MOU with CCCTA for this project. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of November 2017 
           



 
                                                            _________________________________   
             Karla Brown, Chair 
 
         ATTEST: 
                                                               
       
         __________________________________ 
               Michael Tree, Executive Director 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
         Michael Conneran, Legal Counsel 
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November 2017 
 

Ridership Increasing 
Ridership is increasing at the agency, which reverses trends that have been ongoing for several 
years.  At the Project & Services Committee meeting in October a staff report was provided that 
shows in detail the monthly increases over last year.  For your convenience, that staff report is 
attached to this report. 
 
November Stuff-A-Bus Event 
Lucky supermarket in Pleasanton has agreed to be a site location for the November Stuff-A-Bus 
event, which has been rescheduled for Saturday, November 18th.  The event will be covered by 
KKIQ.   
 
Operator Shortage 
After optimizing the Operator schedules, our fixed route contractor has been able to make all bus 
pull-outs in the morning without requiring that supervisors and management operate buses.  By 
the end of November a new group of Operators will be available and the contractor should be 
fully staffed. 

 
Las Positas College Ridership 
One of the most important events this fiscal year will be the student vote on November 13th 
through the 17th at Las Positas College to pay for a long-term student Transit Pass.  Without the 
Transit Pass it is unlikely that the Rapid (30R) will have sufficient riders and fare box recovery 
to satisfy the ongoing funding requirements for the route. 
 

 Individualized Marketing in the SmartTrips Pleasanton Corridor 
Steer Davies Gleave (SDG) recently finished the SmartTrips Pleasanton program.  2,012 
households were spoken with during an in-person visit from trained travel advisors about the 
new Rapid route on Santa Rita that directly and frequently serves BART.  Although the program 
was uniquely challenging, those that chose to participate increase their usage of the bus system.  
In the end, the average number of bus trips increased from 0.29 trips per person in the week prior 
to contact being made with them, to 1.5 trips per person in the week prior to the follow-up 
survey.  It is anticipated that SDG will provide a presentation on the SmartTrips Pleasanton 
program to the LAVTA Board in December. 
 
Rebranding of Wheels 
Staff has finalized the details of the Wheels rebranding efforts approved by the LAVTA Board.  
At the LAVTA Board meeting staff will present to the Board of Directors the new look of the 
Wheels bus before mass producing the new logo and paint scheme for a mid-December or early 
January public unveiling event. 
 
Dublin Student Ridership 
Ridership is holding steady at nearly 600 trips a day taken on all Dublin High School routes.  
Operator shortage is no longer an impact for the added service by Wheels, and students have 
started to use all three morning trips (including the early bird trip). There are still standing loads 



 
in the afternoon, and staff is working with the high school on a strategy to accommodate until 
changes can be made. Staff will bring a staff report back to Project & Services Committee in 
November to update on current conditions and future changes. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Management Action Plan w/Updates 
2. Board Statistics September 2017 
3. Post-COA Analysis 
4. Legislative Update 
5. FY18 Upcoming Committee Items 
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FY2018 Goals, Strategies and Projects                    MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN (MAP)  
Last Updated – November 1, 2017 
 

Goal:  Service Development 
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Provide routes and services to meet current and future demand for timely/reliable transit service 
  2. Increase accessibility to community, services, senior centers, medical facilities and jobs 
  3. Optimize existing routes/services to increase productivity and response to MTC projects and studies 
  4. Improve connectivity with regional transit systems and participate in BART to Livermore project 
  5. Explore innovative fare policies and pricing options 
  6. Provide routes and services to promote mode shift from personal car to public transit 

Projects Action Required Staff 
Board 

Committee 
Target 
Date Status 

Task 
Done 

Long Range Transit Plan 
(Agency’s 30 Year Plan) 

• Receive draft Long Range 
Plan from Nelson/Nygaard 
 

• Present final draft to Board 
 

• Approval 
 

DP 

 
 

 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
Apr 

2018 
 

May 
2018 

 
Jun 

2018 
 

→ Staff studying park and ride report, 
shared mobility and shared autonomous 
vehicle strategy. Strategic Planning 
Workshop for Board being planned for 
spring of 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Comprehensive Paratransit 
Assessment 
 

 
 

• Award of Contract 
 

• Public Outreach 
 

• Approval of 
Recommendations 
 

 

DP 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
    Services 
 

 
Nov 
2016 

 
Jun 

2017 
 

Feb 
2018 

 

→ Nelson/Nygaard awarded contract.  Kick-
off meeting held in February.  Public 
meetings held in June. LAVTA Board 
presentation made in September.  Currently 
developing alternatives.  Second round of 
public workshops in November.  Board 
presentation in January to review 
recommendations. 
 

 
 

X 
 
 

X 

Fare Study 

 
• Draft Fare Study 

 
• Public Hearing (proposed 

changes on fixed route) 
 

DP 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 

May 
2017 

 
Jan 

2018 
 

→ Draft Fare Study complete.  F&A 
reviewed in May.  Decision made to hold 
study results a few months to see ridership 
trends on fixed route.  Paratransit fare 
changes to be considered with paratransit 
study. 

 
X 
 
 
 
 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 2 

• Board Approval 
 

 
 

Feb 
2018 

Three Queue Jumps On 
Dublin Blvd 

 
• Award contract for queue 

jump 
 

• Finish project 
 

 

DP 

 
 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
    Services 
 
 
 

 
 

Jul 
2016 

 
Oct 

2017 
 

 

 
 
 
→ Board awarded contract queue jump 
project in March.  Some delays in project.  
Currently 75% completed.  Queue jumps 
are operational. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

X 
 
 

X 

Transit Signal Priority 
Project in Rapid corridors 

 
• Engineering Work 

 
 

• Finish Project 
 

DP 

 
 

 
Projects/ 
Services 

 
Oct 

2017 
 

Jun  
2018 

 
 

→ Grant by TVTAC approved.  Board 
approved MOU with Dublin.  Board 
approved engineering contract with Kimley 
Horn in October.   

 

Go Dublin Discount 
Program 

• Get clearance from FTA 
 

• Implement 
 

• Results of Program 

DP 

 
 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 

Nov 
2016 

 
Dec 
2016 

 
Dec 
2017 

 
 
 

→ Program providing approximately 1,500 
rides/month.  Mailing to residents occurring 
in September.  Fehr & Peers to present draft 
findings in December. 

 
 
 

X 
 
 

X 
 

 
 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 3 

O&M Contract Request for 
Proposals 

• Develop RFP 
 

• Award Contract 
DP 

 
 

Project/ 
Services 

 

 
Oct 

2017 
 

Mar 
2018 

 

→ RFP released.   Bids due in December.  
Board to award in March. 

 
 

X 

Goal:   Marketing and Public Awareness 
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Continue to build the Wheels brand image, identity and value for customers 
  2. Improve the public image and awareness of Wheels 
  3. Increase two-way communication between Wheels and its customers 
  4. Increase ridership, particularly on the Rapid, to fully attain benefits achieved through optimum utilization of our transit system 
  5. Promote Wheels to New Businesses and residents 

Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 

 
Website Upgrades 
 

 
 

• Update w/Rebranding  
 

• Revise homepage for 
quicker access to commuter 
info 

 
 

MKT 
MGR 

 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
    Services 

 

 
Dec 
2017 

 
Nov 
2017 

 
 

 
→ Button has been created for commuter 
area, landing page under construction.  
Rebranding of website with new Wheels 
logo to take place in December with Wheels 
bus design unveiling.    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
LAVTA Rebranding Project 
 
 

 
 
 

• Selection by LAVTA Board 
of name/rebranding 
scheme. 

 
• Public event to unveil 

rebranding 
 
 

MKT 
MGR 

 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 
 

 
Jun 

2016 
 

Dec 
2017 

 

→ New design for buses approved.  New 
logo approved.  Unveiling event being 
scheduled for Dec 2017. 
 

 
 
 

X 
 
 

 

     → SDG awarded contract.  Collateral  



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 4 

 
Individualized Marketing 
 
 

• Award Contract 
 

• Review of results 
 

 
MKT 
MGR 

 
 

 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 

Oct 
2016 

 
Nov 
2017 

 
 

developed and distributed. Program 
completed.  Post program surveys 
completed. Project report to P&S Committee 
in November with Board report in 
December. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 
N Canyons Parkway Rapid 
Bus Stop Project 
 
 

• Engineering work 
 

• Improvements to site 
 

• Relocation of shelters 

DP 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
May 
2017 

 
Nov 

 2017 
 

Jan 
2018 

 

→ FTA grant to upgrade stops in this 
corridor to Rapid style.  Engineering work 
done.  Bids came in high.  Board rejected all 
bids.  Bid re-advertised.  F&A Committee 
reviewed contract in October. Board to 
consider award in November. 

 
X 
 
 

 
Pleasanton SmartTrips 
Corridor Rapid Bus Stop 
Project 
 

 
• Engineering work 

 
• Award of construction 

contract 
 

• Finish project 
 

DP 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
Dec 
2017 

 
Apr 

2018 
 

Jun 
2018 

 

→ ACTC grant received to upgrade stops in 
this corridor to Rapid style.  F&A Committee 
reviewed Kimley Horn engineering contract 
in October. Board review to take place in 
November.   Bus shelter type is next step.  
Project construction award in April. 

 

 
 
Dublin School Tripper Bus 
Shelter Project 
 
 

 
• Identify new locations for 

shelters 
 

• Install new shelters 
 

ED 

 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
Sept 
2016 

 
Dec 
2017 

 

→   Five locations with high ridership 
identified.  Shelter design being considered.  
IFB being developed to release in Nov to 
install shelters in Dec/Jan. 

 
X 
 
 

 
Replace Shelters Past 
Useful Life That Are On 
Current Routes 

• Identify shelters 
 

• Award contract 
 

• Install 

ED 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
Nov 
2016 

 
Dec 
2017 

 
Dec 

 
 
→ Shelters identified.  Current plan in 
Livermore, where most shelters past useful 
life are located, is to replace them with flat 
roof art style shelters to accommodate art 
murals. 10 shelters delivered. IFB being 
developed to release in Nov to award in 

 
 

 
X 
 
 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 5 

2017 
 

Dec/Jan. 
 
 

 
Goal:  Community and Economic Development  
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Integrate transit into local economic development plans 
  2. Advocate for increased TOD from member agencies and MTC 
  3. Partner with employers in the use of transit to meet TDM goals & requirements 
 

Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 

ACTC: 
Measure BB Transit 
Student Pass Program 

 
• Assist ACTC in promoting 

the student passes 
 

• Monitor effectiveness of the 
program and capacity 
issues 
 

DP 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

Ongoing 
 
 

Ongoing 

 
→ Four schools in Livermore to have free 
pass via Clipper for Wheels access.  
Planning/Marketing Departments working 
with ACTC and school district to distribute 
and market Clipper Cards/bus system.   
Preliminary ridership is approximately 200 
trips per day. 
 

 
 

X 

Las Positas College 
Student, Faculty, Staff Pass 
Program 

• Marketing campaign on 
campus 

 
• Student Vote to retain 

Transit Pass on campus 

MKT 
MGR 

 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 

Nov 
2017 

 
→ Transit pass/marketing efforts ongoing. 
Students to vote on student fee to continue 
pass on November 13th.  Strong marketing 
presence on campus.  
 

 
 

X 

 
Historic Train Depot 
Relocation at Livermore 
Transit Center 
 

 
• City Award of Project 

 
• Demo of TC Customers 

Service Buildings 
 

• Finish 
Relocation/Renovation 

 

DP 

 
 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
Jan 

2017 
 

Jul 
2017 

 
Feb 
2018 

 

→ FTA clearance given to demo current 
building.  City Council awarded contract. 
Temporary facility installed.  Demo of 
LAVTA buildings done.  Depot moved onto 
cement foundation.  Project likely to extend 
into March or April 2018. 

 
 

X 
 
 

X 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 6 

 

 
Rehab of Shade Structure 
and Replacement of 
Furniture at Livermore 
Transit Center.  Rehab of 
Custom Shelter adjacent to 
Livermore TC next to 
Parking Garage.  
 

 
• Bid Project 

 
 

• Project Completion 
 

DP 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 

 

 
Nov 
2017 

 
Jan 

2018 

→In project planning stages. 

 

Goal:  Regional Leadership 
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Advocate for local, regional, state, and federal policies that support mission of Wheels 
  2. Support staff involvement in leadership roles representing regional, state, and federal forums 
  3. Promote transit priority initiatives with member agencies 
  4. Support regional initiatives that support mobility convenience 

Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 

Alameda – San Joaquin 
Regional Rail Working 
Group 

 
• AB 758 

 
ED 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services  

 
 

 
 
 

Oct 
2017 

 
 

 
→ Approved.  Legislation becomes effective 
January 2018. 
 

 
 

X 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 7 

2017 Legislative Plan 

 
• Creation of 2017 Legislative 

Plan and review/approval 
by the Board and provide 
support for key legislation. 

 

ED 

 
 

Finance/ 
Admin 

Feb 
2017 

 

 
→ Report given to F&A in Oct on our 
legislative plan and how bills faired overall.  
Staff report included in Exec Dir Report in 
November. 
 

 
 

 
X 
 

 

State Legislation to Approve 
SAV Project in Dublin 

 
 

• Introduce SAV legislation  
 
 
 

ED 

 
 

Finance/ 
Admin 

Feb 
2017 

→ Approved.  Legislation becomes effective 
January 2018.   

 
 

X 

Goal:   Organizational Effectiveness 
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Promote system wide continuous quality improvement initiatives 
  2. Continue to expand the partnership with contract staff to strengthen teamwork and morale and enhance the quality of service 
  3. Establish performance based metrics with action plans for improvement; monitor, improve, and report on-time performance and productivity 
  4. HR development with focus on employee quality of life and strengthening of technical resources 
  5. Enhance and improve organizational structures, processes and procedures to increase system effectiveness 
  6. Develop policies that hold Board and staff accountable, providing clear direction through sound policy making decisions 

Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 

Performance Metrics 
Improvement  
 

 
• Staff setting up aggressive 

monitoring of key 
performance metrics:  on-
time performance, accidents 
and customer service.   

. 

DP 

 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 

 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 

 
→ Daily and weekly meeting to discuss key 
metrics at staff level.  Presentation on 
performance of routes provided to the P&S 
Committee in October. Staff report attached 
to Nov Exec Dir Report for Board.  Ridership 
and on-time performance is increasing. 
 

 
 
 

 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
 

Underlined text indicates changes since last report. 8 

Goal:  Financial Management 
 
Strategies (those highlighted in bold indicate highest Board priority) 
  1. Develop budget in accordance with strategic Plan, integrating fiscal review processes into all decisions   
  2. Explore and develop revenue generating opportunities 
  3. Maintain fiscally responsible long range capital and operating plans 

Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 

 
FY17 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report 
 

 
 

• Complete financial audit 
and all required reporting to 
Board, local, regional and 
state agencies. 

 
 
 

DF 

 
 
 

Finance/ 
Admin 

 
Nov 
2017 

 
 

 
→ Audit ongoing in September.  F&A has 
reviewed audity.  Presentation to LAVTA 
Board in November. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Other: 

Transit Center Bus Driving 
Isle Improvement Project 

• Perform demo of asphalt 
and construction new base 
and asphalt in driving isle. 

PD 

 
 
 

Projects/ 
Services 

 
 

Feb 
2018 

 

→ Utilizing City pavement contract.  Asphalt 
to be removed and construction completed 
after the Transit Center cement work is 
completed.  This project to tie in closely with 
Historic Depot Relocation project. Will be 
final phase of Depot project.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

SAV Project  

 
 

• Acquire funding to begin 
project 
 

• Approve legislation to test 
SAVs. 

 
• Enter into MOU for testing. 

 
 

ED 
Projects/ 
Services 

 

Oct 
2016 

 
Dec 
2017 

 
Feb 
2018 

 
→ AQMD awarded LAVTA $1 million over 3 
years in funding in exchange for advertising.    
LAVTA Board received a presentation on 
this project and next steps at Feb meeting.  
AB 1444 approved and effective January 
2018.  MOU with County Connection 
reviewed by F&A in October.  Board 
consideration in November.  MOUs with Go 
Mentum and AQMD to be reviewed by F&A 
in Nov. 
 

 
 

 
 

X 
 
 

X 



Projects Action Required Staff Board 
Committee 

Target 
Date Status Task 

Done 
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Triennial Audit  
 
 
 

• Preparation for audit 
 

• Audit and report to board 
DF Finance/ 

Adm 

 
 

Ongoing 
 

May 
2018 

 
 
 

→Comprehensive audit on LAVTA from 
FTA is anticipated in the spring/summer of 
2018. 

 

 



Weekday Saturday Sunday Weekday Saturday Sunday

6,651 1,705 1,407 7.9% -9.4% -1.7%

15.3 10.9 9.0 4.4% -11.4% -3.9%

Monthly Summary Statistics for Wheels
September 2017

FIXED ROUTE

September 2017 % change from one year ago

September 2017
On Time Performance 80.2%

Fully Allocated Cost per Passenger $7.45

Average Daily Ridership

Passengers Per Hour

-1.6%
% change from last month

3.4%

Total Ridership FY 2018 To Date 401,989 2.1%

Total Ridership For Month 148,589 3.1%
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September 2017
% Change 
from last 

year

Year to 
Date

4,501 -4.3% 14,175
2.00 5.3% 6

91.0% -4.1% 3

$32.35 2.0% 97

31 24.0% 101

73.17% -13.4% 2

September 2017 Year to 
Date

1 13

0 0
0 1
0 0

0 0

0 0

Cost per Trip

Number of Paratransit Assessments

Calls Answered in <1 Minute

6th Sanction - 90 Day Suspension

September 2017
PARATRANSIT

General Statistics

Total Monthly Passengers

Monthly Summary Statistics for Wheels

Missed Services Summary
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Total 0 0 0 0
Preventable 1 1 5 1

Non-Preventable 2 0 4 0
Physical Damage

Major 0 0 0 0
Minor 3 1 9 1

Bodily Injury
Yes 0 0 0 0
No 3 1 9 1

MONTHLY CLAIMS ACTIVITY
Amount Paid

This Month
To Date This Fiscal Year

Budget
% Expended

Praise
Bus Stop
Incident
Trip Planning
Fares/Tickets/Passes
Route/Schedule Planning
Marketing/Website
ADA
TOTAL

VALID NOT VALID UNABLE TO 
VALIDATE

VALID YEAR 
TO DATE VALID NOT VALID UNABLE TO 

VALIDATE
VALID YEAR 

TO DATE

Praise 0 1 1
Safety 4 10 1 9 1 0
Driver/Dispatch Courtesy 2 6 9 1 1
Early 3 1 4 2 0
Late 9 6 20 0
No Show 4 5 5 1
Incident 1 3 1 1 1 1
Driver/Dispatch Training 1 1 3
Maintenance 1 0 0
Bypass 10 9 2 20 0
TOTAL 33 42 3 69 1 4 1 6
Valid Complaints

Per 10,000 riders
Per 1,000 riders

2.22
0.22

24 92

CUSTOMER SERVICE - OPERATIONS

CATEGORY
FIXED ROUTE PARATRANSIT

14 53
1 9

0

Monthly Summary Statistics for Wheels
September 2017

SAFETY

ACCIDENT DATA 
September 2017 Fiscal Year to Date

Fixed Route Paratransit Fixed Route Paratransit

$100,000.00

6%

CUSTOMER SERVICE - ADMINISTRATION

CATEGORY Number of Requests
September 2017 Year To Date

Totals

$683.83
$5,552.23

1 2
4 8

5

2
4 13
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SUBJECT: Post-COA Analysis 
 
FROM: Christy Wegener, Director of Planning and Operations 
 
DATE: October 23, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
None- Information only 
 
Background 
It has been a full 12 months since the Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) changes were 
implemented last year (August 13, 2016). Staff now has the ability for an apples-to-apples route 
comparison with the post-COA changes using the full month of September. The following staff 
report is a summary of the route analysis.  
 
Discussion 
The COA projected to bring 5-10% ridership growth on the Wheels bus system within 12-18 
months of implementation, as well as an improvement in On-Time Performance (OTP).  The 
immediate expectation was that the routes would lose ridership (10-15%) for up to twelve 
months, and then ridership would start to rebound as the routes settled in and as new marketing 
campaigns took effect. So far, the route network has done what was expected: The baseline 
average daily ridership for FY2017 was 5.5% lower than before the COA changes; however, 
now that the system has passed the 12-month mark, ridership is beginning to grow and pass 
2015/2016 levels. The COA changes have resulted in several key accomplishments, notably: 
 

1) OTP has improved system-wide by nearly 2% from September of last year from 78.5% to 
80.2%; overall OTP has steadily ticked up 3-5% from pre-COA levels.  
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2) Route 30R needs to achieve a 20% farebox recovery ratio (approximately 2,100 trips per 

weekday) in order to continue to receive $600k in annual Regional Measure 2 (RM2) 
funds from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). While we have not yet 
met that target, we are getting closer each month. Key to this ridership increase has been 
the Las Positas College Transit Pass.  
 

 
 

3) Overall Ridership: Average weekday ridership in August and September 2017 was close 
to or above that of 2015 levels, and exceeded 2016 ridership figures.  
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The chart below shows ridership by calendar year for the past 2.5 years (January 2015 through 
September 2017). The chart reveals that 2016 ridership was lower than 2015 even before the 
COA changes were implemented in August 2016; after implementation, the COA changes 
continued the system’s negative ridership trend through the end of the 2016 year. Ridership 
began to rebound to near pre-COA levels in spring, dipped in the summer, and is now on pace to 
exceed 2015 levels.  
 

 
 
4) Route by Route Analysis: The following table is a summary of the route changes that were 

made as a part of the COA changes.  
 

Route COA Change 
1 Removed Rosewood Drive; realigned to serve Hacienda/Gleason to 

BART; continues to serve Santa Rita Jail, East County Hall of Justice. 
2 No changes to routing. 
3 Route eliminated in West Dublin; service eliminated on Johnson 

Drive; route realigned to connect D/P BART to Stoneridge Mall via 
Hacienda and Stoneridge.  

8 Realigned route off of Santa Rita; no longer serves Case Ave. 
Continues to serve Downtown Pleasanton, Kottinger Park, Pleasanton 
Senior Center 

9 Route eliminated (Hacienda Business Park); service now provided by 
Route 3, 10R, 14 

10R Route no longer serves East Ave or extends on Dublin Blvd to the 
Stoneridge Mall; service frequency doubled to 15-minutes all day 
(Rapid service) 

11 Route extended to connect to Vasco Road ACE.  
12 Route eliminated. Service provided by Route 30R and 14 along 



5_SR_COA Route Analysis Page 4 of 6 

Dublin Blvd, Murrieta, and in Central Livermore 
14 Route realigned to connect to Pleasanton and D/P BART via Jack 

London; serves the Outlets. No longer operates on Pine Street. 
15 No changes to routing. 

20X Slight reroute off Greenville to Vasco; service frequency reduced. 
30R Route realigned off Stanley, Jack London to N. Livermore Ave, 

Portola Ave; now provides service to Las Positas College; no longer 
provides service to the Outlets, or west of Golden Gate Drive to the 
Stoneridge Mall. 

53 No changes to routing or schedule. 
54 Minor changes to routing in Hacienda. 

70X No changes to routing or schedule.  
400s The Livermore School Trippers were eliminated 
580X New Route – Downtown Livermore to BART express 

 
Total ridership on nearly all routes is higher in 2017 than it was in 2016. When comparing 
current ridership trends to previous years, because of the realignment of route segments it is 
difficult to draw firm conclusions about comparative performance. During the first six months of 
2017, LAVTA focused marketing efforts on the Rapid lines (10R, 30R) at Las Positas College 
and with an individualized marketing effort along the Santa Rita corridor.  Thanks to pilot transit 
pass programs at Las Positas College and at select Livermore schools, ridership at key generators 
along Route 30R is up. The Santa Rita corridor has also produced additional ridership. The next 
round of individualized marketing will be rolled out along the Dublin Blvd corridor in 2018.  
 
In late 2016 and early 2017, staff attempted a variety of marketing techniques to highlight new 
Route 580X (door hangers, radio ads, mailer, targeted digital advertising); unfortunately, that 
route’s productivity remains low with no notable increase in ridership from a year ago.  
 
The large increase in Dublin tripper ridership (500-series routes) is due to increases in Dublin 
High School (DHS) enrollment and new housing developments in east Dublin. Minor changes in 
tripper routing have occurred over the past few years, especially for the Dublin routes in order to 
respond to new housing developments.  The Pleasanton tripper routes (600-series routes) have 
been relatively stable over the past few years.  
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In considering route productivity, the following chart presents a before-and-after look at the 
passengers per revenue hour metric. Only three non-school tripper routes have achieved the goal 
of 15-passengers per hour. Route 30R is heading in the right direction. From a route productivity 
standpoint, the school trippers are the highest-performing routes in the system.  
 

 
 
 
School tripper ridership is an area that has seen signficant increases in 2017. While tripper routes 
were not considered or analyzed during the COA, a change was made to peel a trip off of Route 
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2 and operate it as a tripper (new Route 505). During the first 6-8 months of operation, staff 
observed the ridership patterns on both Route 2 and Route 505; it was determined that students 
still migrated to Route 2 for at least one trip. For the 2017 school year, staff temporarily 
suspended Route 505 and will consider the permanent plan for allocation of resources during the 
student transit plan development. Currently, Route 505 resources (approximately one hour of 
service per day) are temporarily being allocated in Dublin to overflow service.  
 
 

 
 
 
Go Dublin 
The Go Dublin discount pilot was made available throughout the City of Dublin in January 2017. 
As a reminder, the discount pays for ½ the trip on Lyft, Uber, or De Soto cab for rideshare trips 
taken within the City. On average, the Go Dublin promotion carries 1,500 passenger trips per 
month. A study with more information on Go Dublin performance is currently underway; more 
information will be presented to the Board in early 2018. 
 
Next Steps 
At this point, staff is not recommending any changes to the route network. Staff will continue to 
focus marketing efforts on routes where there is additional capacity. Staff will continue to 
monitor route productivity and will return to the Committee with an 18-month route evaluation 
in March/April 2018.  
 
Recommendation 
None – Information only 
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SUBJECT:  Legislative Update 
 
FROM: Jennifer Yeamans, Senior Grants, Project Management & Contract Specialist 
 
DATE: October 24, 2017 
 
 
Action Requested 
Receive an informational update on 2017 State and Federal legislative activities of interest to 
LAVTA. 
 
Background 
On February 6, 2017, the Board of Directors approved LAVTA’s 2017 Legislative Program 
to guide staff and the Board for legislative issues to support, watch and monitor, stay neutral, 
or oppose. Attachment 1 provides a detailed summary of the status of key legislation 
LAVTA has followed throughout this year’s legislative sessions in Washington and 
Sacramento as well as positions taken by LAVTA on bills of interest. 
 
Discussion 
Several state bills sponsored or supported by LAVTA have been signed by the Governor; 
most are set to be enacted beginning January 1, 2018. Highlights include: 

• AB 758 (Eggman) which will establish the Tri-Valley–San Joaquin Valley Regional 
Rail Authority. 

• AB 1113 (Bloom) which will provide a permanent and restorative fix to the allocation 
of State Transit Assistance funds to LAVTA and other transit agencies by the State 
Controller’s Office. 

• AB 1444 (Baker) which will authorize LAVTA to conduct a shared autonomous 
vehicle demonstration project in the city of Dublin. 

• SB 1 (Beall and Frazier) which will raise new state revenues for roads, highways, and 
transit beginning November 1, 2017. 

• SB 595 (Beall) which will authorize the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to 
place a measure on the ballot asking voters to approve a toll increase on the Bay 
Area’s state-owned bridges to fund congestion relief projects in bridge corridors. 

 
Recommendation 
None — information only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. 2017 Legislative History 



Attachment 1 
 

 

 
 

Legislative History 
2017–18 Session 
October 17, 2017 

 

STATE      

Bill Current 
Text Status Description 

Related LAVTA 
Legislative Agenda 
Goal or Principle  

LAVTA 
Position 

AB 1 
(Frazier) 

Introduced 
12/5/2016 

Assembly 
Transportation 

Transportation funding. Would create the Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Program to address deferred maintenance on the state 
highway system and the local street and road system. The bill would 
require the California Transportation Commission to adopt performance 
criteria, consistent with a specified asset management plan, to ensure 
efficient use of certain funds available for the program. The bill would 
provide for the deposit of various funds for the program in the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account, which the bill would create in 
the State Transportation Fund. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

AB 17 
(Holden) 

Amended  
9/1/2017 

Vetoed 10/15/17 Transit Pass Program: free or reduced-fare transit passes. Would, 
upon the appropriation of moneys from the Public Transportation Account 
by the Legislature, create the Transit Pass Pilot Program to be 
administered by the department to provide free or reduced-fare 
transit passes, directly or through a 3rd party, including a transit agency, to 
specified pupils and students by supporting new, or expanding existing, 
transit pass programs. The bill would require the department to develop 
performance measures and reporting requirements to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the program, and would require the department to submit 
a report to specified committees of the Legislature on or before January 1, 
2020, on the outcomes of the program and the status of transit pass 
programs statewide. The bill would provide that its requirements become 
effective only upon an appropriation that would trigger the creation of the 
program. The pilot program would be repealed on January 1, 2022. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB17
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AB 96 
(Ting) 

Amended 
5/31/2017 

Assembly 
Budget 

Budget Act of 2017.  This bill would make appropriations for the support 
of state government for the 2017–18 fiscal year. 

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

 

AB 151 
(Burke) 

Amended 
5/2/2017 

Assembly 
Inactive 

California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006: market-based 
compliance mechanisms: scoping plan: report. Would require the State 
Air Resources Board to report to the appropriate policy and fiscal 
committees of the Legislature to receive input, guidance, and assistance 
before adopting guidelines and regulations implementing the scoping plan 
and a regulation ensuring statewide greenhouse gas emissions are reduced 
to at least 40% below the 1990 level by 2030. This bill contains other 
related provisions and other existing laws. 

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

 

AB 399 
(Grayson) 

Amended 
3/23/2017 

Assembly 2 Year  Autonomous vehicles: Contra Costa Transportation Authority: pilot 
project. Current law, until 180 days after the operative date of regulations 
promulgated by the Department of Motor Vehicles to allow testing of 
autonomous vehicles without a driver, authorizes the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority to conduct a pilot project for the testing of 
autonomous vehicles that do not have a driver seated in the driver’s seat 
and are not equipped with a steering wheel, a brake pedal, or an 
accelerator if the testing is conducted only at specified locations and the 
autonomous vehicle operates at speeds of less than 35 miles per hour. This 
bill would extend the authorization for the pilot project to 12 months after 
the operative date of regulations promulgated by the department 

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership  

 

AB 623 
(Rodriguez) 

Amended 
7/5/2017 

Senate 
Appropriations 

Autonomous vehicle testing: accident reporting. Would require the 
operator of an autonomous vehicle who is involved in an accident that 
results in damage to the property of any one person in excess of $1,000, or 
in bodily injury, or in the death of a person, to make that report. The bill 
would require a traffic collision report prepared by a member of the 
Department of the California Highway Patrol or any other peace officer to 
specify if an autonomous vehicle was involved in the traffic collision in 
any manner.  

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership  

 

AB 673 
(Chu) 

Amended 
5/15/2017 

Chaptered 
7/24/17 

Public transit operators: vehicle safety requirements. Would require a 
public transit operator, before placing a new bus into revenue operations, 
to take into consideration recommendations of, and best practices 
standards developed by, the exclusive representative of the recognized 
organization representing bus operators of the transit operator for the 
purpose of protecting bus operators from the risk of assault from persons 
and by removing blind spots. By creating new duties for public transit 
operators, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program. 

Enhance Operating 
Conditions to 
Support Safety and 
Performance Goals 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB96
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB151
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB399
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB623
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB673
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AB 758 
(Eggman) 

Amended 
9/8/2017 

Chaptered 
10/13/17 

Transportation: Tri-Valley–San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail 
Authority. Would establish the Tri-Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional 
Rail Authority for purposes of planning, developing, and delivering cost 
effective and responsive transit connectivity between the Bay Area Rapid 
Transit District’s rapid transit system and the Altamont Corridor Express 
commuter rail service in the Tri-Valley, that meets the goals and 
objectives of the community, as specified. The bill would require the 
authority’s governing board to be composed of 15 representatives and 
would require the authority by July 1, 2019, to  provide a 
project feasibility report to the public on the plans for the development and 
implementation of transit connectivity and to submit that report upon 
completion to specified entities. 

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership 

Support 

AB 1113 
(Bloom) 

Amended 
6/20/2017 

Chaptered 
7/21/17  

State Transit Assistance program. Would revise and recast the 
provisions governing the State Transit Assistance program. The bill would 
provide that only STA-eligible operators, as defined, are eligible to receive 
an allocation from the portion of program funds based on transit operator 
revenues. The bill would provide for each STA-eligible operator within 
the jurisdiction of the allocating local transportation agency to receive a 
proportional share of the revenue-based program funds based on the 
qualifying revenues of that operator, as defined.  

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

Support 

AB 1444 
(Baker) 

Amended 
6/20/2017 

Chaptered 
10/12/17 

Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority: demonstration project. 
Would authorize the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, in 
accordance with substantially similar conditions to existing law applicable 
to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority, to conduct a shared 
autonomous vehicle demonstration project for the testing of autonomous 
vehicles that do not have a driver seated in the driver’s seat and are not 
equipped with a steering wheel, a brake pedal, or an accelerator, as 
specified. This bill contains other existing laws. 

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership 

Support 

AB 1640 
(Garcia, E.) 

Introduced 
2/17/2017 

Assembly 2 Year Transportation funding: low-income communities. Would require, 
beginning January 1, 2020, each regional transportation improvement 
program to allocate a minimum of 25% of available funds to projects or 
programs that provide direct, meaningful, and assured benefits to low-
income individuals who live in certain identified communities or to riders 
of transit service that connects low-income residents to critical amenities 
and services. The bill would require the Department of Transportation, in 
consultation with residents of low-income communities and specified state 
agencies, to adopt guidelines for this allocation no later than January 1, 
2018. 

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB758
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1113
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1444
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1640
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ACA 4 
(Aguiar-
Curry) 

Introduced 
2/17/2017 

Assembly Local 
Government  

Local government financing: affordable housing and public 
infrastructure: voter approval. Would reduce the local vote threshold 
for approval of bond and special tax measures, including for public transit, 
from two-thirds to 55%. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

Support 

SB 1 
(Beall) 

Amended 
4/3/2017 

Chaptered 
4/28/2017 

Transportation funding. Would create the Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Program to address deferred maintenance on the state 
highway system and the local street and road system. The bill would 
require the California Transportation Commission to adopt performance 
criteria, consistent with a specified asset management plan, to ensure 
efficient use of certain funds available for the program. This bill contains 
other related provisions and other existing laws. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

Support 

SB 145 
(Hill) 

Amended 
9/12/2017 

Chaptered 
10/12/17 

Autonomous vehicles: testing on public roads. Current law requires the 
Department of Motor Vehicles to notify the Legislature if it receives an 
application from a manufacturer seeking approval to operate an 
autonomous vehicle capable of operating without the presence of a driver 
inside the vehicle. Current law prohibits such an application from 
becoming effective any sooner than 180 days after that application is 
submitted. The bill would require the department to provide public notice 
when it adopts the autonomous vehicle regulations, would repeal the 120 
day prohibition against limiting or expanding the authority to operate 
autonomous vehicles, and instead would prohibit the department from 
approving an application submitted pursuant to the regulations until 30 
days after public notice of the adopted regulations is provided. 

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership 

 

SB 369 
(Hertzberg) 

Introduced 
2/14/2017 

Senate 2 Year  Autonomous vehicles. Current law authorizes the operation of an 
autonomous vehicle on public roads for testing purposes by a driver who 
possesses the proper class of license for the type of vehicle being operated 
if specified requirements are met. Current law defines an “autonomous 
vehicle: for this purpose as any vehicle equipped with autonomous 
technology that has been integrated into that vehicle. This bill would 
specify that a vehicle equipped with a collision avoidance system, as 
specified, that is not capable of driving the vehicle without a human driver 
remaining fully engaged in the driving task is not an autonomous vehicle. 

Leverage Support 
from and with 
Partners to Promote 
Mobility, Improve 
Service 
Productivity, and 
Enhance Regional 
Leadership 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180ACA4
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB145
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB369
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SB 595 
(Beall) 

Amended  
9/8/2017 

Chaptered 
10/10/2017  

Metropolitan Transportation Commission: toll bridge revenues: 
BART Inspector General: Santa Clara Valley Transportation 
Authority: high occupancy toll lanes 
The bill would require the City and County of San Francisco and the other 
8 counties in the San Francisco Bay area to conduct a special election on a 
proposed increase in the amount of the toll rate charged on the state-owned 
toll bridges in that area to be used for specified projects and programs. The 
bill would require the Bay Area Toll Authority to select the amount of the 
proposed increase, not to exceed $3, to be placed on the ballot for voter 
approval. If approved by the voters, the bill would authorize BATA, 
beginning six months after the election approving the toll increase, to 
phase in the toll increase over a period of time and to adjust the toll 
increase for inflation after the toll increase is phased in completely. The 
bill would specify that, except for the inflation adjustment and as 
otherwise specified in statute, the toll schedule adopted pursuant to the 
results of this election may not be changed without the statutory 
authorization of the Legislature. By requiring this election, the bill would 
impose a state-mandated local program. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

Support 

SB 614 
(Hertzberg) 

Amended  
7/17/2017 

Chaptered 
9/1/2017 

Public transportation agencies: administrative penalties. Current law 
authorizes a public transportation agency to adopt and enforce an 
ordinance to impose and enforce civil administrative penalties for certain 
passenger misconduct on or in a transit facility or vehicle. Current law 
requires these penalties to be deposited in the general fund of the county in 
which the citation is administered. This bill would instead require the 
penalties to be deposited with the public transportation agency that issued 
the citation. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

SCA 6 
(Wiener) 

Amended 
5/1/2017 

Senate 
Appropriations 

Local transportation measures: special taxes: voter approval. Would 
require that the imposition, extension, or increase by a local government of 
a special tax as may otherwise be authorized by law, whether a sales or 
transactions and use tax, parcel tax, or other tax for the purpose of 
providing funding for transportation purposes be submitted to the 
electorate by ordinance and approved by 55% of the voters voting on the 
proposition. The measure would authorize an ordinance submitted to the 
voters for approval under these provisions to provide, as otherwise 
authorized by law, for the issuance of bonds payable from the revenues 
from the special tax. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

Support 

 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB595
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB614
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SCA6
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FEDERAL 

Bill Current 
Text Status Description 

Related LAVTA 
Legislative Agenda 
Goal or Principle  

LAVTA 
Position 

HR 100 
(Brownley) 

Introduced 
1/3/2017 

House Transp & 
Infrastructure 

Support Local Transportation Act. Increases share of Surface 
Transportation Block Grant Program that is suballocated on the basis of 
population from 55% to 65% by fiscal year 2020. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

HR 127 
(Green) 

Introduced 
1/3/2017 

House Transp & 
Infrastructure 

Transit for Veterans. Amends 5307 to mandate operators discount peak 
fares for veterans. 

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

 

HR 891 
(Meadows) 

Introduced 
2/6/17 

House Transp & 
Infrastructure 

Federal Transit Modernization Act of 2017. Repeals requirements that 
condition certain financial assistance for public transportation projects 
upon employee protective arrangements approved by the Secretary of 
Labor. 

  

HR 904 
(Lipinski) 

Introduced 
2/24/17 

House 
Oversight & 
Gov’t Reform 
and other 
Committees 

Buy American Improvement Act of 2017. Changes the Buy American 
Act, standardizes requirements and waiver notices, and expands Buy 
America provisions for existing grant programs, including transportation 
grant programs. 

  

HR 932 
(Ellison) 

Introduced 
2/7/17 

House Transp & 
Infrastructure 

MOVE Act. Directs the Department of Transportation (DOT) to issue 
regulations necessary to establish performance measures relating to 
multimodal transportation connectivity and accessibility for states and 
metropolitan planning organizations to use to assess the connectivity and 
accessibility of roadways, public transit infrastructure, pedestrian and 
bikeway infrastructure, and other transportation infrastructure. 

Protect Existing 
Transportation 
Funding Sources 

 

HR 1458 
(Blumenauer) 

Introduced 
3/9/17 

House Ways & 
Means 

RAISE IT Act. Increases the federal excise tax on gasoline and diesel 
fuel to 33.3 cents and 39.3 cents, respectively. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/100
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/127
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/891
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/904
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/932
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/932
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HR 1664 
(DeFazio) 

Introduced 
3/23/17 

House Transp & 
Infrastructure 
and Ways & 
Means 

Investing in America: A Penny for Progress Act. Amends the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 to index the gas and diesel tax and rebuild our 
roads, bridges, and transit systems. Authorizes the Secretary of the 
Treasury to issue "Invest in America" bonds and distributes the resulting 
revenue through the Highway and Transit Trust Funds to highway and 
transit programs authorized in the Fixing America's Surface 
Transportation Act. Sets aside revenues to proportionately increase 
funding to the Capital Investment Grants program. 

Enhance Future 
Transportation 
Funding 
Investments 

 

S 181 
(Brown) 

Introduced 
1/20/17 

Senate 
Homeland 
Security and 
Gov’t Affairs  

Expand Buy America provisions to ensure federal public works and 
infrastructure projects use manufactured products and commodity 
construction materials produced in the United States. 

  

 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/1664
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-bill/1664
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/senate-bill/181


LAVTA COMMITTEE ITEMS - November 2017 - March 2018

Finance & Administration Committee

November Action Info
Minutes X
Treasurers Report X

December Action
Minutes X
*Typically December committee meetings are cancelled
Treasurers Report X
Meeting Dates X
Legislative Program X

January Action Info
Minutes X
Treasurers Report X

February Action Info
Minutes X
Treasurers Report X

March Action Info
Minutes X
Treasurers Report X
Funding resolutions 5307 X



LAVTA COMMITTEE ITEMS - November 2017 - March 2018

Projects & Services Committee

November Action Info
Minutes X
Quarterly Operations X
Wheels on Demand Evaluation X
Winter Service Changes X

December Action Info
Minutes X
*Typically December committee meetings are cancelled

January Action Info
Minutes (November) X
Draft Long Range Transit Plan X
DAR Passenger Surveys Results X
Mobility Forward Draft Recommendation X

February Action Info
Minutes X
Quarterly Operations X
Operations and Maintenance Contract Award X

March Action Info
Minutes X
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